CAMBRIDGESHIRE

Fenland District Council

Fen|anPublic Document Pack loo%

people
driven

AGENDA

PLANNING COMMITTEE

WEDNESDAY, 14 AUGUST 2019 e-mail: memberservices@fenland.gov.uk

1.00 PM

COUNCIL CHAMBER, FENLAND HALL,
COUNTY ROAD, MARCH, PE15 8NQ

Committee Officer: Jo Goodrum
Tel: 01354 622285

1 To receive apologies for absence.

2 Previous Minutes (Pages 3 - 8)

To confirm and sign the minutes from the previous meeting of 17 July 2019.

3 To report additional items for consideration which the Chairman deems urgent by

virtue of the special circumstances to be now specified

4 To receive Members declarations of any interests under the Local Code of Conduct
or any interest under the Local Code of Conduct or any interest under the Code of
Conduct on Planning Matters in respect of any item to be discussed at the meeting.

5 Planning Appeals. (Pages 9 - 10)
To consider the appeals report.

6 F/YR19/0186/0

Erection of up to 19 no dwellings (outline application with matters committed in
respect of access) involving demolition of existing dwelling and outbuildings; 158

Stonald Road, Whittlesey. (Pages 11 - 30)

To Determine the Application

Fenland District Council » Fenland Hall « County Road  March  Combridgeshire « PET5 8NQ

Telephone: 01354 654321 e Texiphone: 01354 622213
Email: info@fenland.gov.uk » Website: www.fenland.gov.uk

P!
]

5 3 pm
<@
¢\ INVESTORS
N v
%_« IN PEOPLE



7 F/YR19/0556/VOC
Variation of condition 2 (imposition of a condition listing approved plans) of appeal
decision APP/D0515/W/16/3148821 relating to planning application F/'YR15/0614/F .
Land North of Henry Warby Avenue, Elm (Pages 31 - 44)

To Determine the Application.

8 F/YR19/0566/F
Erect 1 dwelling (2 storey 4 bed) including an office and a detached double garage in
association with existing business. Westfield Road, Manea. (Pages 45 - 56)

To Determine the Application
9 Items which the Chairman has under item 3 deemed urgent
Members: Councillor D Connor (Chairman), Councillor A Hay (Vice-Chairman), Councillor | Benney,
Councillor Mrs S Bligh, Councillor A Bristow, Councillor S Clark, Councillor A Lynn, Councillor

C Marks, Councillor N Meekins, Councillor P Murphy, Councillor D Patrick and Councillor
W Sutton,



Agenda Item 2

PLANNING COMMITTEE -enlano

CAMBRIDGESHIRE

WEDNESDAY, 17 JULY 2019 - 1.00 PM o )
Fenland District Council

PRESENT: Councillor D Connor (Chairman), Councillor A Hay (Vice-Chairman), Councillor
| Benney, Councillor Mrs S Bligh, Councillor A Bristow, Councillor S Clark, Councillor A Lynn,
Councillor C Marks, Councillor N Meekins, Councillor D Patrick and Councillor W Sutton,

APOLOGIES: Councillor P Murphy,

Officers in attendance: Jo Goodrum (Member Services & Governance Officer), Nick Harding
(Head of Shared Planning), David Rowen (Development Manager) and Gavin Taylor (Senior
Development Officer)

The following Councillors were present in the public gallery, but took no part in the planning

meeting. Councillor Mrs Laws, Councillor Skoulding, Councillor White from March Town Council
and Councillor Wilkes.

P14/19 PREVIOUS MINUTES

The minutes of the meeting of 19 June 2019 were confirmed and signed.

P15/19 PLANNING APPEALS

David Rowen presented a report to members with regards to appeal decisions received on
applications over the last month and explained this will be a standing agenda item going forward.

P16/19 F/YR18/1136/F
LAND SOUTH WEST OF 1 TO 23 SPRINGFIELD AVENUE, MARCH. ERECTION
OF 40 DWELLINGS COMPRISING OF 4X1 BED AND 4X2 BED 2 STOREY
STOREY FLATS:20X2 STOREY 2 BED AND 12 X2STOREY 3 BED
DWELLINGS,FORMATION OF A SURFACE WATER LAGOON ,PUMPING
STATION AND NEW ACCESS TO CRICKET CLUB

The committee had regard to its inspection of the site (as agreed in accordance with the Site
Inspection Policy and Procedure (minute P19/04 refers)) during its deliberations.

Gavin Taylor presented the report to members and drew their attention report which had been
circulated to members.

Members received a presentation in objection to the application, in accordance with the Public
Participation Procedure, from Mr Peel.

Mr Peel explained that he has lived in his property since 1995 and referred to the overhead
projector where he highlighted to members a map which he had asked to be displayed. He pointed
out the fields which had been maintained at that time, however shortly after the year 2000 the area
was left to deteriorate by the landowners. There has been no maintenance carried out and the
area has been left to remain in a natural state.

Page 3



Mr Peel identified a gentleman who has been maintaining the lane and as far as he is aware there
have been no issues raised with regard to trespass.

Mr Peel added that with regard to hazards, there is not the need to have any additional hazard and
there is already pedestrian and cycle traffic twice a day. He explained that trying to cross
Springfield Avenue can be dangerous when traffic turns into the road from The Avenue.

He added that the officer has already outlined the plans which contravene the set out plans
however the Executive Officer states that the plans are agreeable.

He stated that a Wildlife Trust Officer has stated that March has a deficit of natural green space
and had highlighted this when he had reviewed the phase 1 habitat map of the town had been
reviewed.

Mr Peel stated that in 2018 the Government had published a summary of targets for a 25 year
environment plan to integrate wildlife and humans together. He drew member’s attention to the
conclusion on page 151 of the plan and added everyone feels better after a walk in the park or the
woods. He added that the people of Fenland need their open spaces and listed some of the other
aspects listed within the plan.

Mr Peel referred to the Fenland Local Plan and referred to some land which was gifted to the Town
by a family in the 1950’s. He mentioned that the old nursery grounds should be restored and made
into a community wildflower and orchard facility. He added that the only green area which he
believes has been created in March in the last ten years is the Crematorium.

He concluded by questioning who would want to build over the high pressure gas main.

Members received a presentation in support of the application, in accordance with the Public
Participation Procedure, from Mr Kratz, the Agent.

Mr Kratz stated that the proposal is on land, half of which is part of the allocation, but all of it is
within the built framework of March, for a 100% affordable housing scheme, with guaranteed
funding for it.

The officer's assessment has stated that in principle the scheme is agreeable and in the summary
there are no technical issues standing in the way of the development. All of the County Council
statutory consultees have no objection to the scheme technically and there are only 2 proposed
reasons for refusal, 1 of which is that there is no Broad Concept Plan and the other is that should
there be an appeal, there is no agreement in place to provide affordable housing.

Mr Kratz added that the committee need to weigh up the benefits of the proposal against the harm
of it. In his opinion the benefits are largely self-explanatory and the government have stated that
the provision of housing should be given significant weight, with the provision of affordable housing
should be given an even greater priority.

He added that the other benefits of the scheme include the mitigation of the wildlife impact.

Mr Kratz referred to the allocation maps and stated that the bulk of the Broad Concept Plan site is
not accessed through Springfield Avenue junction. The junction is perfectly capable and will save
the larger site becoming an even larger cu de sac in its own right. He stated as to whether there is
the need for the site to connect with the other site and added that pedestrian and cycle wise would
be an advantage but for vehicular movements it would be a dis benefit.

Mr Kratz added that it is highly likely that the other site will be subject to a viability assessment,
which in his opinion will result in the scheme not being able to provide affordable housing.

Mr Kratz concluded by saying there is no harm in terms of affecting the viability of the other site

Page 4



and no issues concerning the access point of the other site. He added by saying that there is no
harm in stating that the other site is going to be denied an opportunity from the proposal before
members today.

March Town council have offered support to the application and with regard to the local objectors,
there are some local to the proposed site but also some who live a considerable distance from the

area.

Members asked questions, made comments and received responses as follows:

Councillor Sutton commented that he has some concerns about the Broad Concept Plan
and also with the proposed site. The dog leg area which can be seen on the map will be
more of a hindrance to a developer of the BCP land than an advantage. He added that he
does not see the proposal as detrimental to the Broad Concept Area and work is
commencing on the production of the new Local Plan, and in his opinion there will still be
issues with the land owners.

CliIr Sutton stated that the proposal is for social housing and there are in the region of 1500
people on the housing list and the proposal is 100% affordable, on balance in his opinion he
believes the committee should go against the officer's recommendation and approve the
application.

Councillor Benney commented that in his opinion, the land is open for development. He
added that if there are 2000 houses to be built, this would not be the entrance for them to be
built and there would be multiple entrances into the development. He stated it brings the
benefits of much needed housing, both affordable and social and will also be of benefit for
the people of March. He added that with regard to the Broad Concept Plan for development,
there will be multiple entrances when the plan comes forward, however if we continue to
wait for the Broad Concept plans to be brought forward, there could be little housing being
built. He stated whilst we have to consider other factors such as wildlife, people do have to
come first.

Councillor Hay stated that on many occasions we have stated we need affordable housing
and on many occasions due to viability, proposals have been refused. She added that with
regard to the proposal before members there is a guarantee of 100% affordable housing
which is backed by the Combined Authority. She questioned that if this application is not
approved will the Combined Authority continue to support affordable housing in this area in
the future. She stated that on balance this application should be approved.

Councillor Mrs Bligh agrees with all the comments made and added that the need for
affordable housing outweighs the issues of the broad concept plan and she will be
approving the application.

Councillor Sutton commented that the earlier comments from Councillor Hay concerning the
Combined Authority with regard to the financial aspects should not be a deciding factor
when determining this application. The committee are here to decide whether the use of the
land is the correct use and at the correct time. He added that not to approve this application
would mean an injustice to March, Fenland and the residents a dis service.

Councillor Meekins commented that he has reviewed the reasons listed by the officers for
refusal for this application and questioned whether the BCP and the items listed with regard
to offsetting the bio diversity harm cannot be addressed before the application is approved.
Cllr Meekins confirmed he was querying LP7, LP5 and LP19.Gavin Taylor clarified that the
scheme has been found to mitigate the impact of the development through a compensation
scheme, which is a requirement of a financial contribution which is dealt with through a
section 106 contribution. Entering into such an agreement prior to the application going
before committee could potentially be costly and therefore if applications are approved it is
generally subject to a section 106 agreement being approved before the decision is issued.
Councillor Meekins asked for clarification and asked that if the application is approved will
the two issues stated in the officer's report be addressed. Gavin Taylor confirmed that the
reasons stated the last refusal reason states that there is no section 106 agreement in place
to secure affordable housing and also the bio diversity offsetting. He stated that because

Page 5



officers are recommending the application for refusal, it has to go down to refusal reasons,
in case the application went to appeal.

e Councillor Connor commented that he has noted March Town Council approve the
application subject to an adequate section 106 agreement and noted that the March Town
Councillors have stated that they have moved away from their neighbourhood plan and
made the decision to support the development for 100% affordable housing. Councillor
Connor added that the site lies in flood zone 1 and is supported by a flood risk assessment
and drainage strategy report. The County Council have raised no objections to a condition
securing a surface water scheme and there are no highway objections. Councillor Connor
stated that Fenland Housing have supported the application and expect the dwellings to
come forward as affordable housing and the current tenure is expected as 70% affordable
rented and 30% immediate tenure which would equate to 7 affordable rented homes and 3
immediate tenure. Councillor Connor mentioned that going forward the 2000 homes will
need businesses and schools and some provision for access and reiterated the point
Councillor Sutton and Benney had alluded to with regard to the stalling of other Broad
Concept Plans. He concluded that this application cannot be turned down.

e Nick Harding commented that having listened to the debate a number of members have
highlighted the benefits of the scheme and principally that the delivery of 100% affordable
housing scheme outweighs the dis benefit of the scheme in the context of our planning
policy in relation to the BCP for the site and if that is the proposal that members are going
to make then he asked that delegated authority be given to officers to apply development
conditions and provision for the section106 contributions in respect of the 100% affordable
homes and the bio diversity contribution.

e Councillor Lynn asked whether the archaeological investigations can also be included. Nick
Harding added that this will be included as part of the conditions.

The substantive reasons given by members to against the officer's recommendation were the
committee on balance feels that the benefits outweigh the disadvantages according to the policies
that are referenced in the officers’ report.

Proposed by Councillor Connor, seconded by Councillor Lynn and decided that the
application be APPROVED, against the officers recommendation, subject to Section 106
and conditions being approved.

P17/19 F/YR19/0257/F
SITE OF FORMER 24 HIGH STREET, WISBECH, DEMOLITION OF EXISTING
BUILDING IN WISBECH CONSERVATION AREA AND ERECTION OF 3NO
TEMPORARY STORAGE/TOILET BUILDINGS.

The Committee had regard to its inspection of the site (as agreed in accordance with the Site
Inspection Policy and Procedure (minute P19/04 refers)) during its deliberations.

David Rowen presented the report to members and drew their attention to the update report which
had been circulated.

Members asked questions, made comments and received responses as follows;

e Councillor Sutton questioned why this proposal was not submitted in the original application.

e Councillor Patrick commented that there has been the loss of so many buildings in Wisbech
and the building in question is central to the town of Wisbech and the demolition needs to
take place and move on.

e Councillor Meekins has recently visited Constantine House which backs onto the proposed
site before the committee today and has been advised by the developer that pigeons
nesting in the site are causing considerable damage. He added that although he is not over
enamoured with the proposal, anything is better than the current eyesore.

Page 6



Proposed by Councillor Sutton, seconded by Councillor Patrick and decided that the
application be APPROVED as per the officer’'s recommendation.

P18/19 F/YR19/0352/F
LAND WEST OF 126-128 ELLIOTT ROAD, MARCH.ERECTION OF 3XSINGLE
STOREY 3 BED DWELLINGS WITH DETACHED GARAGES

The Committee had regard to its inspection of the site (as agreed in accordance with the Site
Inspection Policy and Procedure (minute P19/04 refers)) during its deliberations.

David Rowen presented the report to members.
Members asked questions, made comments and received responses as follows;

e Councillor Sutton commented that this site has been presented to members on 4 previous
occasions and the proposal before members today is the best option seen to date.

e Councillor Hay stated that she felt that it was a good scheme because it tidies up the area.
She added that in 2017, March Town Council recommended approval for a proposal of 4
dwellings, however in 2019, they are recommending refusal for over development where it
is fewer dwellings. She commented that she will be agreeing with the officer
recommendation for approval.

e Councillor Patrick stated that he was impressed with the layout of the plans and he concurs
with Councillor Hay with regard to the reasons for refusal from March Town Council. He
added that the proposal does tidy up the area and will make it far more pleasant.

e Councillor Mrs Bligh added that this is not over development and will complete the area.

e Councillor Lynn added that in his opinion the road needs to be completed before residency
and also there is an archaeological investigation required.

Proposed by Councillor Patrick, seconded by Councillor Mrs Bligh and decided that the
application be APPROVED as per the officer’'s recommendation.

P19/19 F/YR19/0362/F
LAND NORTH WEST OF SEAFIELD FARM, GOREFIELD ROAD, LEVERINGTON,
ERECTION OF 3 X2 STOREY, 3 BED DWELLINGS WITH ASSOCIATED DOUBLE
GARAGES

The Committee had regard to its Inspection of the site (as agreed in accordance with the Site
Inspection Policy and Procedure (minute P19/04 refers)) during its deliberations.

David Rowen presented the report to members and drew their attention to the update report which
had been circulated.

Members received a presentation in support of the application, in accordance with the Public
Participation Procedure, from Mr Gareth Edwards, the Agent.

Mr Edwards explained that the proposal is before the committee after working closely with the
planning officer and he asked for his thanks to be recorded. He stated that the application is purely
a change in design for what has been previously approved and is in the same location. He
confirmed that the application has the support of all the statutory consultees with the exception of
the Parish Council who have commented that it is over development, however in Mr Edwards
opinion he feels that it is not over development as there has already been approval for 3 dwellings
on the site and it is purely a change of design.

Page 7



He stated that in his opinion, the proposed dwellings are more in keeping with the area and this
view is further supported as there have been no local objections.

Members asked Mr Edwards the following questions:

e Councillor Sutton asked for confirmation of which drain is the responsibility of the Internal
Drainage Board. Mr Edwards confirmed it is the drain that is the drain to the left hand side
and there will be the normal agreement in place.

Members asked questions, made comments and received responses as follows:

e Councillor Sutton commented that he cannot see how any Planning Inspector can state that
the proposal is adjacent to the village. He added that he will support this scheme.

e Councillor Hay stated that members need to be mindful that we are here to determine the
application before them today. She added that permission has already been granted for 3
houses irrespective of the Inspectors decision, and irrespective of whether we agree with it.
It would prove very difficult to refuse this application, as it is just a change of design and she
will be supporting it.

Proposed by Councillor Meekins, seconded by Councillor Sutton and decided that the
application be APPROVED, as per the officer’s recommendation.

(Councillor Patrick left the meeting following this agenda item)
P20/19 F/YR19/0447/F

19 RICHARDS CLOSE, MARCH. ERECTION OF A 1.05 METRE HIGH BRICK
WALL TO FRONT BOUNDARY

The Committee had regard to its Inspection of the site (as agreed in accordance with the Site
Inspection Policy and Procedure (minute P19/04 refers)) during its deliberations.

David Rowen presented the report to members and drew their attention to the update report which
had been circulated to members.

(Councillor Mrs French had registered to speak in support of this application, however withdrew
her request.)

Members asked questions, made comments and received responses as follows:

e Councillor Sutton asked whether the bricks are 4 inches or 9 inches. David Rowen stated
the officers do not have that level of detail, however they are satisfied that as long as the
wall does not exceed the height specified, the fact as to whether it is single or double skin
will not have any impact on the character of the area.

Proposed by Councillor Mrs Hay, seconded by Councillor Clark and decided that the
application be APPROVED as per the officer’'s recommendation.

2.36 pm Chairman

Page 8



6 obed

PLANNING APPEAL DECISIONS

The Council has received the following Appeal decisions in the last month:

PA Ref Site/Proposal Officer Decision Appeal Main issues
Recommendation | Level Decision
F/YR18/0397/F | Erection of a 2-storey 4-bed | Refuse Delegated | Dismissed ¢ Site located in Flood Zone 2 (partly) and no
dwelling with integral (Written sequential test provided.
garage, Land south of 33 reps)
Shaftesbury Avenue, March
F/YR18/0805/F | Erection of a 2-storey 3-bed | Refuse Delegated | Dismissed ¢ Detrimental impact on the setting of the rear

dwelling with attached
garage, Land north east of
107 High Street, Chatteris

(written reps)

of the nearby grade Il listed building.

e Poor levels of residential amenity due to
shading from a protected tree (TPO) and
lack of quality in the design of the dwelling.

All decisions can be viewed in full at https://www.fenland.gov.uk/publicaccess/ using the relevant reference number quoted.

G wa)| epuaby



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 6

F/YR19/0186/0

Applicant: RWS Ltd Agent : Miss Ella Murfet Turley

158 Stonald Road, Whittlesey, Peterborough, Cambridgeshire

Erection of up to 19 no dwellings (outline application with matters committed
in respect of access) involving demolition of existing dwelling and
outbuildings

Reason for Committee: Number of letters of support contrary to the officer
recommendation.

1

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1

1.2  The principle of housing in Whittlesey accords with the Council’s Settlement

1.3  Significant level of objections have been received from nearby residents mainly

1.4 Amended drainage/flood risk assessment have overcome consultee objections.

1.5 Itis considered that the application is capable of coming forward safeguarding

This proposal seeks to develop a long narrow former paddock site that is
surrounded by recent housing developments on the northern edge of
Whittlesey. The application is in outline form seeking only the principle of up to
19 houses and the detail of access taken off Stonald Road facilitated by the
demolition of No 158. The layout is indicative only.

Hierarchy.

referring to access, largely seeking no through road and access from Stonald
Road only, subject to some concerns from Stonald Road residents regarding
traffic safety. County Highways do not object.

both the character of the area and neighbouring residential amenity and the
application is recommended for approval subject to the signing of a Section 106
agreement.

SITE DESCRIPTION

This application relates to a 1.36 ha site formerly paddock land located to the north
of and including No 158 Stonald Road in Whittlesey. The site has a finger shaped
footprint being narrow and long with the rears of housing on the eastern side of
Glenfields with rear gardens (between 7 — 10 metres in length) abutting the site
and the side gables of houses on the eastern side of the site off Pattons Close,
Harvester Way and Morris Close also abutting the site. The site is almost flat with a
gentle slope downwards to the north of the site with an area being within Flood
Zone 3, an area at highest risk, and the main part being within Flood Zone 1, an
area at lowest risk of flooding. The site has only a few trees, most being within the
existing residential curtilage of No 158 or within the site boundary hedgerow to the
east, or appear outside the site at the backs of properties to the west.

PROPOSAL

Page 11



3.1 The application is in Outline form with the principle of up to19 dwellings being
sought with 5 affordable units with tenure mix to be agreed. The application
includes the siting of a private access drive off Stonald Road. The proposal
requires the demolition of No 158 Stonald Road a relatively modern detached
house.

3.2 In support of the application the applicant submitted the following:

Phase 1 Environmental Assessment.(Ground conditions}

Ecological Impact Assessment.

Indicative Drainage Assessment

Flood Risk Assessment

Design and Access Statement and

Topographical survey,

Indicative Layout

Access drawing off Stonald Road.

After objections from the Drainage authorities the applicant resubmitted the Draft
Drainage strategy.

3.3 Full plans and associated documents for this application can be found at:

https://www.fenland.gov.uk/publicaccess/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=docume
nts&keyVal=P2T5Y9HEO1U00

4  SITE PLANNING HISTORY

Reference Description Decision Date

FAfRIVDIDG/EXT Residential Development (invelving demaoliion of Granted  28/03/2010
part of 158 Stonald Road) and erection of a
detached garage for 158 Stonald Road (renewal
of planning permssion FYROTOZ31/0)
Land Morth O 155 - 158 Slonaid Road Whithesey Cambaidges

FRfRO7TD231M0 Residential Development (invelving demoliion of Granted O2/05/2007
part of 158 Stonald Road) and erection of a
detached garage for 158 Stonald Road
Land Morth O 155 - 156 Sonald Road Whittesey Peterboroug

Fra4i0318/F Erection of a single-storey rear extension to Granted  15/08/1984
existing house
158 Stonald Road Whittiesay Camibs

Fraog28/F Erecticn of a detached double garage/store Granted 18003/1981
158 Stonald Road Whittiesey Camibs

FiD4B2/82/RM(1} Erection of a house and garage Land adj 155 Approved  O7/01/1983
Stonald Road Whittlesey

Land Agd] 155 Stonald Road Whitlesey

FiD4B2/82/0 Residential development Granted 08/10/1282
Land adfacent 156 Sionald Road, Whithesey
Fioa0asu o Residential development (5.1 acres) Refused  18/11/1280
Common Drove Whittiesey Camas
FIOT 287 TIF Creerhead Lines Raise no  ZBM2ME8TT
Objection
Parigh of Whithesay

5 CONSULTATIONS

Page 12


https://www.fenland.gov.uk/publicaccess/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=documents&keyVal=P2T5Y9HE01U00
https://www.fenland.gov.uk/publicaccess/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=documents&keyVal=P2T5Y9HE01U00

5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

Housing Strategy Paragraph 62 of the revised NPPF states that where a need for
affordable housing is identified, planning policies should specify the type of
affordable housing required (using the revised definition of affordable housing).
Policy LP5 of the Fenland Local Plan sets out that for the tenure mix of affordable
housing, the council will seek 70% as rented tenure and 30% as intermediate
tenure.

The new NPPF starter homes and discount market homes are not the preferred
tenures for delivery in Fenland. These new tenures included in the new NPPF are
all forms of home ownership tenure and therefore could only be used as a
substitute for shared ownership or rent to buy models. However, both Starter
Homes and discount market homes offer far less flexibility and affordability to
households who need assistance with getting on the housing ladder than shared
ownership or Rent to Buy. It is acknowledged that because of viability challenges
in Fenland it can be very difficult to secure our Policy level affordable housing
and, in some instances struggle to secure any affordable homes. Therefore, we
are happy for the new home ownership tenures to be discussed at the stages
where it has become clear that all other alternatives have failed, on the basis that
some form of affordable housing is better than none. In this instance no evidence
regarding inability to deliver affordable housing has been demonstrated therefore
the 70% Social Rented /30% Intermediate will be sought.

FDC Environmental Health Officer accepts the submitted information and has
‘No Objections’ in principle, as it is unlikely to have a detrimental effect on local air
quality or the noise climate. A construction management plan to ensure that the
construction phase does not impact upon any nearby existing residential
dwellings, and would also welcome (likely to be requested by County Council
Highways) documented measures to mitigate the amount of construction site
debris/mud that is transferred onto the surrounding public highway. As the
proposal includes the demolition of an existing dwelling and associated
outbuildings, then the ‘Unsuspected contamination’ condition is requested.

FDC Waste Collection /In broad principal we have no objection Should the
access road remain privately maintained then either a shared bin collection point
within 10 m of the public highway will be required or in order to access the site
indemnity would be required. A swept path plan for an 11.5m refuse collection
vehicle is required to demonstrate that it can access and safely turn in a forward
motion on the roadway.

Peterborough City Council Ecology Officer The proposed development is
located in close proximity to Common Wash County Wildlife Site, however this
proposal is unlikely to have an impact upon the features for which this site has
been designated a County Wildlife Site. No evidence of any bat roosts were found
during the survey, however it was considered that there were a small number of
suitable roosting features present in the house and garage to be demolished
(under the roof tiles). The building was therefore considered to have a low potential
to support roosting bats. | would recommend that the bat activity survey referred to
in the bat report is carried out, and should any evidence of bats be found,that
appropriate mitigation measures be agreed with the LPA via a suitable planning
condition. A standard bird nesting Informative be attached should the scheme be
approved. To mitigate for the loss of potential nesting habitat, | would request that
a range of nesting boxes are installed that cater for a number of different species
such as House Sparrow, Starling & Swift, may

be secured via a suitably worded condition. Also regarding Hedgehogs, a suitably
worded condition is requested. With regard to the new landscape planting, | would

Page 13



recommend the use of a range of native species such as those listed in Appendix
3 of the ecology report, full details of which may be secured by condition. | have no
objection to the proposal subject to the use of appropriate conditions

5.6 Natural England has no objection.

5.7 CCC Highways Most properties within the surrounding area of the proposed
access have the availability of off street parking however having reviewed
comments from objectors it appears to be a reoccurring issue.Any parking
displacement as a result of the proposal on implementing the new access will be
negligible. Any loss of kerbside parking along Stonald Road is likely to be
compensated for along the development road however FDC will need to consider
how and if any parking will be displaced as part of this application. Any speeding
problems suggested is again down to police enforcement and it should not be
incumbent upon the developer to resolve an existing speeding issue as
suggested by objectors.

5.8  Whilst | agree that there are issues with the site layout | would however remind
the LPA and residence that the application is only committing access at this stage
and not committing layout or the scale of the development. | can also confirm that
there have be no recorded injury accidents within the last 5 years at the proposed
junction intersection with Stonald Road. Which suggests that there is no existing
highways safety problem that would be exacerbated by this development.

5.9 | note the comments from objectors in relation to junction spacing the proposed
access has suitable spacing from existing junctions. The location of the
development access/junction will have no adverse highway safety risk to the
operation of existing junctions along Stonald Road. Should the developer provide
the amendments that | have requested then the access would be suitable to
either remain as a private access or come forward as an adopted piece of
highway infrastructure dependent upon how the developer and FDC wish to
proceed.

5.10 After the applicant has amended the alignment of the access to meet highways
requirements the LHA has requested appropriate conditions be attached.

5.11 CCC Archaeology this site lies in an area of high archaeological potential. CCC
Archaeology therefore do not object subject to a programme of archaeological
investigation secured through the inclusion of a negative condition, such as the
example condition approved by DCLG

5.12 Anglian Water The development site is within 15 metres of a sewage pumping
station. This asset requires access for maintenance and will have sewerage
infrastructure leading to it. For practical reasons therefore it cannot be easily
relocated. Anglian Water consider that dwellings located within 15 metres of the
pumping station would place them at risk of nuisance in the form of noise, odour or
the general disruption from maintenance work caused by the normal operation of
the pumping station. The site layout should take this into account. The preferred
method of surface water disposal would be to a sustainable drainage system
(SuDS) with connection to sewer seen as the last option account and
accommodate this infrastructure type through a necessary cordon sanitaire,
through public space or highway infrastructure to ensure that no development
within 15 metres from the boundary of a sewage pumping station if the
development is potentially sensitive to noise or other disturbance or to ensure
future amenity issues are not created.

Page 14



5.13

5.14

5.15

5.16

5.17

5.18

5.19

5.20

The foul drainage from this development is in the catchment of Whittlesey Water
Recycling Centre that will have available capacity for these flows. The sewerage
system at present has available capacity for these flows. A public sewer is shown
on record plans within the land identified for the proposed development. It
appears that development proposals will affect existing public sewers. It is
recommended that the applicant contacts Anglian Water Development Services
Team for further advice on this matter. The preferred method of surface water
disposal would be to a sustainable drainage system (SuDS) with connection to
sewer seen as the last option.

North Level IDB Objected to the indicative layout due to Plot 19 contravening the
Boards byelaws, although only indicative the drainage proposals repositioned plot
19 to address this concern. The IDB would require surface water discharge details.

After amended drainage details the IDB considered an amended proposal to use
infiltration rather than discharging into the IDB’s ditch (which the IDB originally
objected to) was not welcomed preferring instead the original proposal.

Following submission of an amended drainage strategy, the IDB confirmed
removal of their objections to the application, instead requesting evidence to
demonstrate sufficient storage on site to serve the 19 properties at detailed
design stage.

Environment Agency In the absence of an acceptable Flood Risk Assessment
(FRA) the EA objected to the original submission for the following reasons:

The FRA submitted with this application does not comply with the requirements set
out in paragraph 9 the Technical Guide to the National Planning Policy
Framework. The submitted FRA does not therefore, provide a suitable basis for
assessment to be made of the flood risks arising from the proposed development.
The 5m contour should be shown on the topographic survey overlain with the
proposed site plan. The EA will not accept any built development or private
gardens within 5m contour. Ideally there would be an 8m buffer from the 5m
contour. Plots 18 and 19 may need to be reconsidered if within this area.

Following the amendments to the originally submitted scheme, the Environment
Agency withdrew its objection subject to the inclusion of a condition on any
permission requiring development to be carried out in accordance with the flood
risk assessment.

Local Lead Flood Authority objected to the original application for the following
reasons:

Inappropriate discharge rates

Infiltration issues

Inappropriate Hydrobrake position

Filter drain position,

Inclusion of rainwater harvesting in the calculations.
IDB permission to discharge has yet to be obtained.

Following the submission of additional information the LLFA confirmed they have
no objection to the principle of development, requesting conditions regarding the
agreement and implementation of the final drainage strategy based upon the
principles of the agreed approach and agreement of the long term maintenance
arrangements for the surface water drainage system.

Page 15



5.21

5.22

5.23

5.24

5.25

5.26

Cambridgeshire Fire & Rescue requests fire hydrants are provided.

Cambridgeshire Police would like to be consulted should planning approval be
given, in order to comment on the design and layout, including external lighting
plans and landscaping/boundary treatments.

CCC S106 Officer The request from the County Council refers to the need for
early years and primary school provision at Park Lane Primary School, and
Secondary School provision at Sir Harry Smith Community College. However due
to these projects all being subject to 5 previous requests they are considered to
be pooled and cannot therefore be requested. A request for £2022 towards
Whittlesey Library is made.

NHS were consulted but have made no comment.
Local Residents/Interested Parties

25 letters of objection received from 21 neighbours referring to the following
summarised issues:

e Impact on character of the area particularly loss of open land at the back of
houses;

e Loss of quiet, tranquillity

e Lack of height of screen fences on all properties abutting resulting in loss of
privacy looking directly into gardens and houses.

e Will impact on the amenities of the other properties surrounding, through
noise, overlooking, overshadowing, loss of daylight, dust & vibration due to
likely piling of foundations;

¢ Noise nuisance from proposed access road;

e Loss of land used in emergency by the air ambulance impacting on
emergency services;

o Will result in over-development and increasing high density in the local area
that has been saturated by new development.

e Harm to pets that frequent the open land and existing wildlife including
protected species,

e Will increase the strain on local infrastructure and amenities that are already
substandard particular reference to education and health.

e The layout and density of the proposed development is inappropriate for the
suggest location.

e The cumulative impact of the development when considered alongside other
development will have an adverse impact on the area.

e Neighbours are currently enduring construction nuisance daily from existing

and recent building works for the Snowley Park Development, and Patten’s

Close immediately to the rear, to endure significantly more nuisance will be

intolerable.

Complaint regarding failure to receive publicity on the application,

Loss of trees/hedgerows on the boundary with neighbours

Proposed access appears too narrow to work satisfactorily,

The house to be demolished is well maintained and should be retained.

Previous permitted 5 bungalows would have had less impact and would not

result in overlooking of neighbours,

e Loss of views, housing be surrounded by housing.

Page 16



6.1

7.1

7.2

7.3

e The access will result in car headlights shining into living rooms on south side
of Stonald Road and bedrooms causing a negative impact to quality of life.

e The access should be from Harvester Road not requiring the demolition of a
house,

e The access should not be from Harvester Road due to existing problems on
Yarwells, Headland and West Delph. Stonald Road is more suitable for
access than estate roads.

e Highway Safety of an access close to existing access points on what is a rat

run, problems of displacement of on-street parking on Stonald Road,

Loss of value of property,

Result in increased traffic,

Light pollution,

Anti-social behaviour

Odour nuisance

Drainage issues,

Concern regarding loss of boundary fences/hedgerows.

Concerns regarding the indicative layout

STATUTORY DUTY

Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires a
planning application to be determined in accordance with the Development Plan
unless material planning considerations indicate otherwise. The Development
Plan for the purposes of this application comprises the adopted Fenland Local
Plan (2014).

POLICY FRAMEWORK

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)
Para 11: Presumption in favour of sustainable development
Para 56: Planning obligations tests.
Para 155: Development should be directed away from areas at highest risk of
flooding.
Para 165: Major development should incorporate SUDS.
Para 170: Contribution to and enhancement of the natural and local environment.

National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG)
Determining a planning application

Fenland Local Plan 2014

LP2 Facilitating Health and Wellbeing

LP3 Settlement Hierarchy

LP4 Housing

LP5 Meeting Housing Need,

LP13 Mitigating the impact of a growing district.
LP14 Flood Risk

LP15 Transport

LP16 Delivering high quality environments
LP17 Community safety

LP18 Historic Environment

LP19 Natural Environment

KEY ISSUES
. Principle of Development

Page 17



10

10.1

Access and Highway Safety
Character of the Area
Residential Amenity

Flood Risk and Drainage
Planning Obligations

Other Matters

BACKGROUND
Previous permission was granted for part of the site (demolishing the garage of
No 158 to facilitate an access drive to serve 5 dwellings). This has since expired
however it indicated the principle of a residential development accessed off
Stonald Road was acceptable.

ASSESSMENT

Principle of Development

The site is within the settlement of Whittlesey, which is considered by the
Council’'s Settlement Hierarchy (Policy LP3) to be a Market Town where growth
can be accommodated. The site is privately owned paddock land, it is not public
open space. Whilst development has surrounded the site arguably the land could
have come forward with previous developments. Whilst the detailed layout of the
proposed development is to be submitted for approval at the reserved matters
stage the principle of proposed new housing being accommodated alongside
existing residential development ought not to be refused simply because this is
the last area undeveloped in the vicinity. In principle the proposal accords with
Policy LP3.

Access and Highway Safety

10.2 The proposal is for a single, direct access to the development site from Stonald

Road to serve the entire development proposed. Objectors raised concerns
regarding traffic safety on Stonald Road. This was highlighted to the LHA who
have considered the issues raised but conclude that the proposal would not lead
to highway safety concerns.

Character of the Area

10.3 The site is within a predominantly residential area with housing surrounding the

site. There are a number of sites accessed directly off Stonald Road arguably
backland in character and usually with cul-de-sac access. Whilst this has not
provided a permeable or well linked highway network, it has established the
character of the locality. It is considered that this indicative proposal is entirely in
keeping with the existing character of the area. Details of layout, scale etc are not
for determination and therefore detailed assessment of impact would be
undertaken at the reserved matters stage.

Residential Amenity

10.4 The proposal is in outline form and therefore the impact on neighbouring

residential amenity cannot be assessed until the submission of details takes
place. However, it is accepted that the applicant’s indicative layout demonstrates
that up to 19 dwellings could be accommodated on the site.

10.5 Concerns regarding noise and headlights nuisance from the road access are

material considerations and may impact on immediate neighbours. A fence with
some acoustic mitigation could be provided where the access roads abuts
neighbours, however these are normal incidents within an urban residential
environment. There is a vehicular access serving a large dwelling on the site and

Page 18



a backland dwelling is located to the east. Access for Pattens Close would have
been identical in its impact on houses on Stonald Road. Fenland Council has no
residential layout standards or specific guidance regarding backland sites and
impact of proposed access roads on existing neighbours and the impact in this
instance does not justify refusal of the proposal.

Flood Risk and Drainage

10.6 The proposed housing is within Flood Zone 1 an area of lowest flood risk.
Therefore, the proposal is considered to pass the Sequential test. Matters of
concern between the North Level and Lead Local Flood Authority have been
resolved and the drainage authorities no longer object. The proposal is therefore
considered to accord with Policy LP14.

Planning Obligations

Libraries

10.7 The only request not subject to pooling from the County Council is for internal
enhancements of Whittlesey Library seeking £2,022 in order to provide additional
useable space to meet the needs of the development. This is considered to
comply with the CIL regulations.

Open Space
10.8 As regards open space the proposal is required by appendix B of the Fenland

Local Plan (2014) to provide the following:

Open Space % of Where standard is
Type development not
area required to be
provided
Neighbourhood 4% or £5440 Less than 0.5ha
/ Town Park
Children’s Play 4% or £5440 14 homes or less
Natural 5% or £6800 Less than 0.5ha
Greenspace
Allotments 1% £1360 Less than 0.5ha/ 9
homes
or less
Outdoor Sports 8% £10,880 Less than 0.5ha/ 9
homes
or less
Total 22%

10.9 The applicant has confirmed that the natural greenspace can be met on the
indicated northern open space area. This could therefore be safeguarded within
the Section 106 agreement. The remaining elements totalling £23,120 will need to
be provided off site.

Affordable Housing

10.10 The applicant agrees to provide 5 affordable dwellings, which meets with the
requirement of policy LP5 for a minimum of 25% affordable housing on the site.
The tenure mix for 5 could be flexible to meet the requirements of a Registered
Social Landlord although a starting position should be 3 social rented and 2
intermediate. The proposal is considered capable of meeting planning policy
requirements.

Page 19



Other Matters

10.11 As regards resident’s concerns of trees/hedges being lost, the removal of
trees/hedgerows that are not protected does not constitute development.
However works to trees that are within neighbour’s land are a matter for
agreement between landowners but should not be affected without the owner’s
consent. As for boundary fencing this should be part of a detailed or reserved
matters application but normally is required to be provided by the developer.

10.12 Concerns regarding informal use of the site for emergency helicopter access are
not considered a reason to refuse a planning application, nevertheless it is noted
that an area for flood storage/public open space will be retained on the northern
end of the site and therefore could enable emergency access with the
development taking place.

11  CONCLUSIONS

11.1 The application complies with the Council’s settlement hierarchy. It seeks only
consent for up to 19 dwellings served off a proposed access off Stonald Road
similar to that of nearby Pattens Close. Concerns have been raised about
accessing from elsewhere, but the only access being proposed is off Stonald
Road. The Local Highway Authority has been asked to address matters raised by
objectors but has confirmed it has no objection on highway safety grounds.

11.2 The layout is for indicative purposes only and is therefore not being determined.
However it is clear that development in the Flood Zone 3 area is unlikely to come
forward. Consideration of the impact of houses on neighbouring residential
amenity would need to be given at the time of submission of details. Issues of
drainage have been overcome and it is considered the site is capable of being
drained in accordance with SuDS principles.

11.3 Many objections highlight worries regarding noise during construction. These
concerns are often from houses built in recent years themselves having gone
through modern construction processes. Planners are advised not to duplicate
controls if other forms of controlling legislation exist. In issues of noise
disturbance Council’s Environmental Health departments have nuisance powers,
and EH officers are the Councils noise experts. No conditions regarding hours of
operation or noise nuisance from construction are therefore included. The
developer will be advised regarding nuisance powers and the need to work at
sociable hours. There is a condition regarding parking for construction vehicles in
order to reduce nuisance on the highway.

11.4 The proposal is considered to accord with local plan policies.
12 RECOMMENDATION

Grant

12.1 That the Committee delegates authority to finalise the terms of the S.106
agreement (with regard to the provision of affordable housing and natural green
space, and contributions to the Whittlesey Library and other open space as
detailed earlier in the report) to the Head of Planning, and

12.2 Following completion of the S106 obligation to secure the necessary library
contributions, policy compliant levels of affordable housing and open space as
detailed in this report, application F/'YR19/0186/0O be approved subject to
conditions listed below.

Page 20



OR

12.3 Refuse the application in the event that the obligation referred to above has not
been completed or satisfactory progress has not been made by the applicant or
the applicant is unwilling to agree to an extended period of determination of 4
months, or on the grounds that the applicant is unwilling to complete the
obligation necessary to make the development acceptable.

12.4 The proposed conditions are as follows;

1.

Approval of the details of:

i the layout of the site

ii. the scale of the building(s);

iii. the external appearance of the building(s);
iv.  the landscaping

(hereinafter called "the Reserved Matters" shall be obtained
from the Local Planning Authority prior to the
commencement of development).

Reason - To enable the Local Planning Authority to control
the details of the development hereby permitted.

Application for approval of the Reserved Matters shall be
made to the Local Planning Authority before the expiration
of 3 years from the date of this permission.

Reason - To ensure compliance with Section 92 of the
Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

The development hereby permitted shall begin before the
expiration of 2 years from the date of approval of the last of
the Reserved Matters to be approved.

Reason - To ensure compliance with Section 51 of the
Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

The Reserved Matters submission in accordance with
Condition 1 above shall make provision for no more than 19
dwellings on the site.

Reason — For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure a
satisfactory standard of development.

The reserved matters submission in accordance with
condition 1 above shall make provision for on-site natural
green space, in accordance with the relevant Local Plan
policy, including details of its management and
maintenance as well as its connectivity to the development
and to adjoining land.

Reason — To ensure that the proposal makes adequate
provision for natural green space and is integrated fully into

Page 21



the wider green infrastructure network of the area in
accordance with policy LP19 of the Fenland Local Plan
(2014).

No demolition/ development or preliminary ground works of
any kind shall take place on the site until the applicant, or
their agents or successors in title, has secured the
implementation of a programme and timetable of
archaeological work in accordance with a written scheme of
investigation which has been submitted by the applicant to
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
The approved programme shall then be implemented in
accordance with the approved timetable prior to any other
works taking place on site.

Reason - To secure the provision of the investigation and
recording of archaeological remains threatened by the
development and the reporting and dissemination of the
results in accordance with Policy LP18 of the Fenland Local
Plan and to enable the inspection of the site by qualified
persons for the investigation of archaeological remains in
accordance with a written scheme of investigation.

Prior to the commencement of the development hereby
approved adequate temporary facilities area (details of
which shall have previously been submitted to and agreed
in writing with the Local Planning Authority) shall be
provided clear of the public highway for the parking, turning,
loading and unloading of all vehicles visiting the site during
the period of construction.

Reason - To minimise interference with the free flow and
safety of traffic on the adjoining public highway in
accordance with Policy LP15 of the Fenland Local Plan
2014.

No above ground works shall commence until a surface
water drainage scheme for the site, based on sustainable
drainage principles, has been submitted to and approved in
writing by the local planning authority. The scheme shall
subsequently be implemented in accordance with the
approved details before development is completed.

The scheme shall be based upon the principles within the

agreed Drainage Strategy/ Flood Risk Assessment

prepared by RWS Limited/ Parsons Engineering (ref:

DR01C-J5135/ 18079-FRA-01) and Flood Risk Assessment

(dated 17th June 2019/ 9th May 2019) and shall also

include:

e Full calculations detailing the existing surface water
runoff rates for the QBAR, 3.3% Annual Exceedance
Probability (AEP) (1 in 30) and 1% AEP (1 in 100) storm
events;

e Full results of the proposed drainage system modelling
in the above-referenced storm events (as well as 1%

Page 22



AEP plus climate change) , inclusive of all collection,
conveyance, storage, flow control and disposal
elements and including an allowance for urban creep,
together with an assessment of system performance;

e Detailed drawings of the entire proposed surface water
drainage system, including levels, gradients,
dimensions and pipe reference numbers;

¢ Full details of the proposed attenuation and flow control
measures;

e Details of overland flood flow routes in the event of
system exceedance, with demonstration that such flows
can be appropriately managed on site without
increasing flood risk to occupants;

¢ Full details of the maintenance/adoption of the surface
water drainage system;

e Measures taken to prevent pollution of the receiving
groundwater and/or surface water

e The drainage scheme must adhere to the hierarchy of
drainage options as outlined in the NPPF and PPG

Reason - To ensure that the proposed development can be
adequately drained and to ensure that there is no increased
flood risk on or off site resulting from the proposed
development

Prior to commencement of development a precautionary
emergence/return survey of the site (as referred to in Para
8.5.1 of the Ecological Impact Assessment (November
2018) submitted in support of this application) shall be
carried out. If any evidence of bat activity occurs a
mitigation strategy shall be submitted to and agreed in
writing by the Local Planning Authority and the development
shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details.

Reason - In the interest of the protection of protected
species and the wider interests of biodiversity and in
accordance with Policy LP19 of the Fenland Local Plan.

10

For the duration of the construction works being undertaken
on the site, any construction trenches or other excavations
shall be covered overnight unless a means of escape has
been provided within them to allow any hedgehogs (or other
mammals or reptiles) that may have become trapped within
them to escape. Any area of scrubland to be removed to
facilitate the development shall be hand-searched
immediately prior to clearance under the supervision of
suitably qualified ecological personnel to establish if
hedgehogs or reptiles are present on the land. Should any
such presence be discovered on the site then suitable
measures to remove them from the site, or to undertake the
clearance in such a way as to ensure no harm arises to
them, shall be employed prior to the scrub clearance taking
place.

Reason - To safeguard biodiversity in line with the aims of

Page 23




the National Planning Policy Framework and Policy LP19 of
the Fenland Local Plan, adopted May 2014.

11

Prior to the occupation of any part of the development
hereby approved bird nest boxes shall be installed on site.
These nesting boxes shall cater for a number of different
species such as House Sparrow, Starling & House Martin
and details regarding numbers, designs and locations
should be provided to and agreed in writing by the Local
Planning Authority prior to their installation.

Reason - To safeguard biodiversity in line with the aims of
the National Planning Policy Framework and Policy LP19 of
the Fenland Local Plan, adopted May 2014.

12

Prior to the occupation of any dwelling on the site, the
approved vehicular access shall be laid out and constructed
in accordance with the approved plans and thereafter
maintained as such in perpetuity. The approved access
shall be constructed with adequate drainage measures to
prevent surface water run-off onto the adjacent public
highway, in accordance with a scheme submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority in
consultation with the Highway Authority, and retained as
such in perpetuity.

Reason - In order to ensure that adequate vehicular and
pedestrian access is provided in the interests of highway
safety and to prevent surface water discharging to the
highway in accordance with Policy LP15 of the Fenland
Local Plan 2014.

13

Prior to the occupation of the first of the dwellings hereby
approved, full details of the proposed arrangements for
future management and maintenance of the proposed
streets within the development shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. (The
streets shall thereafter be maintained in accordance with
the approved management and maintenance details until
such time as an Agreement has been entered into unto
Section 38 of the Highways Act 1980 or a Private
Management and Maintenance Company has been
established).

Reason: To ensure satisfactory development of the site and
to ensure estate roads are managed and maintained
thereafter to a suitable and safe standard, in accordance
with policy LP15 of the Fenland Local Plan, adopted May
2014.

14

Prior to the first occupation of any dwelling the road(s),
footway(s) and cycleway(s) required to access that dwelling
shall be constructed to at least binder course surfacing level
from the dwelling to the adjoining County road in
accordance with the details approved as part of condition

Page 24



13 above.

Reason: In the interests of highway safety and to ensure
compliance with Policies LP15 and LP16 of the Fenland
Local Plan, adopted May 2014.

15

Prior to the first occupation of the development hereby
approved a refuse collection strategy shall be submitted to
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
The approved refuse collection strategy shall be
implemented in accordance with the agreed details in full
and thereafter be retained in perpetuity unless otherwise
agreed in writing.

Reason: To ensure a satisfactory form of refuse collection
and compliance with Policy LP16 of the Fenland Local Plan,
adopted May 2014.

16

Details for the long term maintenance arrangements for the
surface water drainage system (including all SuDS features)
to be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority prior to the first occupation of any of the
dwellings hereby permitted. The submitted details should
identify runoff sub-catchments, SuDS components, control
structures, flow routes and outfalls. In addition, the plan
must clarify the access that is required to each surface
water management component for maintenance purposes.
The maintenance plan shall be carried out in full thereafter.

Reason - To ensure the satisfactory maintenance of
drainage systems that are not publically adopted, in
accordance with the requirements of paragraphs 163 and
165 of the National Planning Policy Framework.

17

Prior to the first occupation of the development hereby
approved, a scheme for the provision of fire hydrants or
equivalent emergency water supply shall be submitted to
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
The approved details shall be implemented and made
available for use prior to the occupation of the first dwelling.

Reason - In the interests of the safety of the occupiers and
to ensure there are available public water mains in the area
to provide for a suitable water supply in accordance with
infrastructure requirements within Policy LP13 of the
Fenland Local Plan 2014.

18

If, during development, contamination not previously
identified is found to be present at the site then no further
development (unless otherwise agreed in writing with the
Local Planning Authority) shall be carried out until the
developer has submitted, and obtained written approval
from the Local Planning Authority detailing how this
unsuspected contamination shall be dealt with. The
development shall then be carried out in full accordance

Page 25



with the approved remediation strategy.

Reason - To control pollution of land and controlled waters
in the interests of the environment and public safety in
accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework, in
particular paragraphs 178 and 179, and Policy LP16 of the
Fenland Local Plan 2014.

19

The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in
accordance with the following approved plans and
documents

Page 26



Ry g
/7 < -
,’ €
‘ [ 3
s D
- :\_] ,’“.
I—JI T
. N o
X = )
= Posts g
s, Iy
g
z. i —
s [y —
8- :
) (]

Created on: 12/03/2019 F/YR19/0186/0 }N\ z ! Eii’l\ Ga”r:lci

Fenland District Council

© Crown Copyright and database — .
rights 2019 Ordnance Survey 10023778 Scale = 1:2,500

Page 27



=2} -
g5 N
o) o g £
e 2 £ 1
3= Py s ® 1
o= 2 Z a2 x %%
B = S c B S > S g 2 i3
= o [=2] = 8 s 4 ® 3E
S = = |3 = <] o ® 9 & E 2%
Ll i S © (5] = -8 T s g2
= 4 B> =22 g

=) = Y (=) = = Sy oa
i=] = b -] DO BB 228
) B @ = = 28400 = 25EE3
> © B Lo : Zeoat
o o ®© = s222
° =] = ) S e
@ o [ = g M=~ KR S pES S
S = 51 S - : 8=as:E B E
LT © S 8=
=9 e | AMn ~ SO W £ 33
= S |z s 2| @ sz
© O @ 55
S e = » |8 N B % =5
S & S =y »n | @ 82
s 5 ° = . — = i
2| o 5] @ @ = 3 s

s[5 7] o ) =

Q| = <3 © < e

< X |oa [mn] a w (]

Open space

Open space

REMOVED FOR
BOUNDAR

EXSTING HEDG

FLOOD STORAGE AREA
' NOT FOR DEVELOPMENT

/

SE5

whw\ d : SRR LITRITRRRR RN
Wog A N AT .
N R R
148081 ju S

Private Garden

///

NN

Private Garden

Existing House (158) to
be demolished including
boundary wall to front.

. R B . ®
. O . O\ I ; ; ; i
— BN k N / / / e % S
. . . = / 7
N A Y N N N 2 7 1 i i ] ]
O N . O N : { ~ L
y L . . N . i / ; ;
. . . . . N\ S . .
O Ea O O\ N - / . O P / / i

Y ?
Fe) © AN
3 N O R L
TTR- o 5 AR ———
S = = L I;miIinmnmmnu e s 5%
g @ AR IR TR RRRRRRNN , 5
= 9 3 . - e NNT-.
= % o
0 ) g £ S AN R AR
(e = (<)) N / / > N wm
<C o S 2 g 2 N N <
- r— IN : 2%
A = = S e £ D %///4/ 83
M = o o ‘B — -
— - ) ()] m — Zm .m
L 0 = - g s g & .
Lo S @ > £ M\ = g |
V a ~ D W nIU = © N o _
E @) o) o n_Vu o) a - N
— =K § & ©£o oo 2
T ro) Q O A o X 5 0
N s s 2 2E gE B V%
— —
) O o oo <o W o [ ] s
= ; T T
-~ £ NN 2
) NN 13
N Te) s
= 2 N\
1 RN _ o \

Page 28



Drawing No.

DESIGN INFORMATION

Design stage

Feasibility

Description of Highway Infrastructure

Simple priority T junction

Checking Authority

County Council / Unitary Authority

Design codes

MfS.

62 abed

Description of Ground Conditions

Nof known at this stage

/

2L x 43 m
visibility splay

24 x43m
visibility splay —

oCrown Copyright. All rights reserved. Licence No. 00752145

NOTES

1.

All dimensions are in mefres unless stated

P17032-07-01A

otherwise.

HIGHWAY ALIGNMENT REVISED TO SUIT
COMMENTS MADE BY CAMBRIDGESHIRE
COUNTY COUNCIL HIGHWAYS, DATED

03/05.19.

GPD [15.05.19

Ref.

Amendment

Ch'kd Date

L —————

STIRLINGMAYNARD
‘Construction Consultants

Stirling House Rightwell Bretton Peterborough PE3 8DJ

Tel 01733 262319 Fax 01733 331527

Email enquiries@stirlingmaynard.com www.stirlingmaynard.com

Client

STIRLING MAYNARD
TRANSPORTATION

] [ LAND AT 158 STONALD ROAD

WHITTLESEY
CAMBRIDGESHIRE

Drawing Title

Drawings are not to be scaled. Work to stated
dimensions only.

© copyright Stirling Maynard.
All rights reserved. This drawing remains the
property of Stirling Maynard at all times and may

PROPOSED JUNCTION LAYQOUT

Project Manager

P S SWALLQOW | oraving Status

FEASIBILITY

Drawn

PSS | scte Draving No.

Checked

PSS 1:500

not be reproduced or copied in whole or in part
without their prior written consent.

pate  Oct 2018 @ A3

P17032-07-01A



AutoCAD SHX Text
154

AutoCAD SHX Text_1
152

AutoCAD SHX Text_2
125

AutoCAD SHX Text_3
160

AutoCAD SHX Text_4
141

AutoCAD SHX Text_5
156

AutoCAD SHX Text_6
156

AutoCAD SHX Text_7
161

AutoCAD SHX Text_8
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_9
158

AutoCAD SHX Text_10
162

AutoCAD SHX Text_11
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_12
2.4 x 43 m visibility splay

AutoCAD SHX Text_13
Stonald Road

AutoCAD SHX Text_14
Site boundary

AutoCAD SHX Text_15
Irving Burgess Close

AutoCAD SHX Text_16
2.4 x 43 m visibility splay

AutoCAD SHX Text_17
©Crown Copyright. All rights reserved. Licence No. 0075214500752145

AutoCAD SHX Text_18
Drawing No.

AutoCAD SHX Text_19
Drawing No.

AutoCAD SHX Text_20
Scale

AutoCAD SHX Text_21
Drawing Status

AutoCAD SHX Text_22
Project Manager

AutoCAD SHX Text_23
Drawn

AutoCAD SHX Text_24
Checked

AutoCAD SHX Text_25
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text_26
Drawing Title

AutoCAD SHX Text_27
Scheme Title

AutoCAD SHX Text_28
Client

AutoCAD SHX Text_29
Ref.

AutoCAD SHX Text_30
Amendment

AutoCAD SHX Text_31
Ch'kd

AutoCAD SHX Text_32
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text_33
Stirling House  Rightwell  Bretton  Peterborough  PE3 8DJ Tel  01733 262319  Fax   01733 331527 Email  enquiries@stirlingmaynard.com  www.stirlingmaynard.com

AutoCAD SHX Text_34
Drawings are not to be scaled.  Work to stated dimensions only. © copyright Stirling Maynard.   copyright Stirling Maynard.   All rights reserved.  This drawing remains the property of Stirling Maynard at all times and may not be reproduced or copied in whole or in part without their prior written consent.

AutoCAD SHX Text_35
P17032-07-01A

AutoCAD SHX Text_36
P17032-07-01A

AutoCAD SHX Text_37
STIRLING MAYNARD

AutoCAD SHX Text_38
TRANSPORTATION

AutoCAD SHX Text_39
LAND AT 158 STONALD ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_40
WHITTLESEY

AutoCAD SHX Text_41
CAMBRIDGESHIRE

AutoCAD SHX Text_42
PROPOSED JUNCTION LAYOUT

AutoCAD SHX Text_43
P S SWALLOW

AutoCAD SHX Text_44
PSS

AutoCAD SHX Text_45
PSS

AutoCAD SHX Text_46
Oct 2018

AutoCAD SHX Text_47
1:500

AutoCAD SHX Text_48
FEASIBILITY

AutoCAD SHX Text_49
@ A3

AutoCAD SHX Text_50
NOTES 1. All dimensions are in metres unless stated All dimensions are in metres unless stated otherwise.

AutoCAD SHX Text_51
Description of Highway Infrastructure

AutoCAD SHX Text_52
DESIGN INFORMATION

AutoCAD SHX Text_53
Design stage

AutoCAD SHX Text_54
Feasibility

AutoCAD SHX Text_55
Simple priority T junction

AutoCAD SHX Text_56
Checking Authority

AutoCAD SHX Text_57
County Council / Unitary Authority

AutoCAD SHX Text_58
MfS.

AutoCAD SHX Text_59
Description of Ground Conditions

AutoCAD SHX Text_60
Not known at this stage

AutoCAD SHX Text_61
Design codes

AutoCAD SHX Text_62
HIGHWAY ALIGNMENT REVISED TO SUIT COMMENTS MADE BY CAMBRIDGESHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL HIGHWAYS, DATED 03/05.19.

AutoCAD SHX Text_63
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_64
GPD

AutoCAD SHX Text_65
15.05.19


0g abed

1. Do not scale this drawing.

4.6

Headwall will be provided
2. All dimensions are in millimetres unless stated otherwise.

3. This drawing to be read in conjunction with all other
relevant drawings and specifications.

5.10 A (

T 5m Contour (Extent of Flood Zone 3)
4. All proprietary items to be installed in strict compliance

with manufacturers instructions and recommendations.

5.10

MH to contain Hydrobrake limiting

discharge to 2.78 I/s \
c Storm Water KEY
7 REY
> e Roof drainage shall discharge to Permeable Driveways. Permeable Paved Car-parking
9m Mai Strio al DB Drai e  All car-parking areas and access road shall be ~
m Maintenance Strip along ramn 553 permeable block paved. (Hydropave 240 block Paving M Permeable Paved Access Road
/ = g&% 548 by Tobermore or similar), sand bedding layers shall
< $50-// provide filtration. .
— . . Private Foul Water Manhol
s e  Type 3 Subbase (30% Voids) shall be provided under all O rivate roul Tater Manhole
§ 565 B permeable paved areas, providing attenuation. - Foul Water Pipeline
~' e  Subbase shall infiltrate to soils through permeable
] 12 membrane o
L 5 ~ e Finished Floor Levels to be at least 150mm above Proposed Finished Floor Levels
y TR 0 1; . . .
2 4,;2.';"‘%&' ”’ﬁs." surrounding Ground Level in accordance with the Flood
i &‘;“i&g@;}'«% Risk Assessment report. 6.10 | Existing Levels
4 5% 7?_1*‘?3%2? \ e Hydrobrake should be provided limiting discharge to
/1 ﬁ 2% ’:r,%sés'&? 2.78 /s Proposed Ground Levels
~\0\ ‘ Y
qV] i 5%7’%:? / Foul Water
<+ '0;"0{‘»,'0;'4 ‘ - ——=——- Perforated Pipeine
g ARk K i i
L9 5% S < e A gravity foul water system shall be provided to collect
$5% 5;&"" foul water from all plots and discharge to a Pumping
5%, Retmeable'Blockwork S'Latlon. ) on shall include hich-level al
(type 3 Subbase with 30% voids td provide * The Pumping Station shall include Igh-level alarms
and 24-hour emergency storage capacity

e  The pumping station shall discharge to the existing

11 attenuation) c
public sewer along Stonald Road.

30

Perforated Pipélang

]

200mm DIAM PERMEABLE

PIPE - TO BE FULLY

DESIGNED AT RESERVED

MATTERS APPLICATION
N

— Maintenance Strategy

e A Maintenance Contract will be provided to maintain
the drainage system.

CONSTRUCTION DESIGN AND
MANAGEMENT REGULATIONS 2015

THE CONTRACTORS ATTENTION IS DRAWN TO THE

Ns) ABNORMAL RISKS IDENTIFIED BELOW, ANNOTATED
ON THE DRAWING AND EXPLAINED IN THE

ASSOCIATED DESIGN RISK REGISTERS

LEGEND

YOU MUST NOT DO

HAZARD OR DANGER

36
9
YOU MUST DO

OS>

NG

' 8
CAUTION
\ ABNORMAL RISKS IDENTIFIED:
P3 Storm Water Strategy added TBP 25-06-19
Drainage strategy amended to infiltration discharge
All Parking Spacep to be P2 for Storm Water. Access Road changed to Permeable TBP 09-05-19
T l Paving. All storm pipes and chambers removed.

" ~
R
LNARSS

3

S
3

R

3

\‘S’g"\"o‘ R
3

s
S
% ~:§

R
RIS
DS

S

,“
RS
%

K
9,
AR

RS

SSOKKKAR
TR

p / K 2 '
& KRS
| N
] L= 2
; Permeable Blockwaork
IR
9?.2%‘5:'2'/2%2%?2%%? - Rev'd
0"0«,&:’:@4&3‘&‘? .‘ Rev Amendments b Date
Kool L1~ y
R AR ]
9 R NN NN
,‘ P &,~I~I~/‘I‘1‘1~I~'~ '
B e, AN A o Client
IRL T 0 SNIINNNNRNS [ 7] e
R PNGARAA [T
RSASAIRAARNAN "/
GGI NN RANR
"«'3%&%&:«»«* % .
,\ f\
™

v

X
SN
‘ <

o
N
SR
S
A

R
oA,
S
S

N
5

R
R
R

—

R

N
X
NN

R

R
2
R 232}
—
Project

158 Stonald Road

R
AN
QKX

X
3
‘0

/2

SO
oo
"‘0'

>

ﬁ
A
SO

3
»
1
VAN
g\'

3

3
?‘
1

S

SRR A ——

" ¢ 'SONS !".. 1
::g%:&*figzy"@m\m
N ’

Y
‘.
11

Title

Dranage Strategy

ater Package Pumping $tation

X3
S

K3
3
R

\s

o

R

[ ‘\?’s:\f

SN
S

X

X

,.A
R
XX

X

S
3

X%
R
N

N
R
IR

z?b

XN

R
o
ST
SO

=
R

80mm dia PEJ00 Foul Water Rising Mdin

NA

x

SN

RIS
SRR
=T E< >

X
AXRR

o

3\%
- N

Job No 18079

S

QIR
RN

XN

K
X
ENRS

X
3
5

R

O

Permeable Paved Access Roa

Drawing No 100 Rev P3

R

)
X
S
NS

%

QO
O
SR

3
2
N

QS
XX

Status

2%
X

N
a
20K

R
R
RS

Preliminary

I
X
N

K
3
&
!

)
X
XN

Scale Date

1:500 8/4/19

3

>,
XN

X
-
NS

X

X
QR
QO

S
S
XX

s

Project Drawn By NP

X
KSR X
RN

Engineer
TBP Checked By TBP

Approved By

Crsons

Providing engineering solutions for the
1 Built Environment
84 4 Angel House, Eastgate ,Whittlesey,
Peterborough, PE7 ISE
144 07961 783825
www.parsonsengineers.co.uk

Break Presdure Chamber

Propos¢d new connection ma



AutoCAD SHX Text_66
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_67
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_68
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_69
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_70
144

AutoCAD SHX Text_71
124

AutoCAD SHX Text_72
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_73
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_74
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_75
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_76
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_77
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_78
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_79
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_80
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_81
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_82
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_83
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_84
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_85
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_86
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_87
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_88
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_89
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_90
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_91
152

AutoCAD SHX Text_92
154

AutoCAD SHX Text_93
152

AutoCAD SHX Text_94
156

AutoCAD SHX Text_95
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_96
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_97
147

AutoCAD SHX Text_98
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_99
143

AutoCAD SHX Text_100
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_101
162

AutoCAD SHX Text_102
156

AutoCAD SHX Text_103
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_104
N 

AutoCAD SHX Text_105
6.01

AutoCAD SHX Text_106
6.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_107
6.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_108
6.29

AutoCAD SHX Text_109
6.18

AutoCAD SHX Text_110
6.12

AutoCAD SHX Text_111
6.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_112
6.21

AutoCAD SHX Text_113
6.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_114
6.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_115
5.98

AutoCAD SHX Text_116
5.91

AutoCAD SHX Text_117
5.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_118
5.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_119
5.54

AutoCAD SHX Text_120
5.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_121
5.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_122
5.91

AutoCAD SHX Text_123
6.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_124
6.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_125
5.94

AutoCAD SHX Text_126
5.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_127
5.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_128
5.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_129
5.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_130
5.32

AutoCAD SHX Text_131
5.48

AutoCAD SHX Text_132
5.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_133
5.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_134
5.93

AutoCAD SHX Text_135
5.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_136
5.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_137
5.83

AutoCAD SHX Text_138
5.54

AutoCAD SHX Text_139
5.27

AutoCAD SHX Text_140
5.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_141
5.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_142
5.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_143
5.31

AutoCAD SHX Text_144
5.57

AutoCAD SHX Text_145
4.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_146
Field

AutoCAD SHX Text_147
5.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_148
5.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_149
6.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_150
5.66

AutoCAD SHX Text_151
5.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_152
5.91

AutoCAD SHX Text_153
6.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_154
6.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_155
6.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_156
6.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_157
6.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_158
4 Angel House, Eastgate ,Whittlesey, Peterborough, PE7 1SE 07961 783825 www.parsonsengineers.co.uk  

AutoCAD SHX Text_159
Providing engineering solutions for the Built Environment

mattt
Text Box
200mm DIAM PERMEABLE PIPE - TO BE FULLY DESIGNED AT RESERVED MATTERS APPLICATION


Agenda Item 7

F/YR19/0556/VOC
Applicant: Mr J Myles Agent : Mr Nigel Lowe
Colville Construction Peter Humphrey Associates Ltd

Land North Of, Henry Warby Avenue, Elm,

Variation of condition 2 (imposition of a condition listing approved plans) of
appeal decision APP/D0515/W/16/3148821 relating to planning application
F/YR15/0614/F (Erection of 30 x 2-storey dwellings comprising; 21 x 2-bed and 9 x
3-bed) to enable the erection of 30 x dwellings comprising; 12 x 3 bed dwellings
and 18 x 2-bedroom dwellings.

Reason for Committee: Level of objections received contrary to the Officer
recommendation

1 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1 This application seeks to regularise the plan schedule in order to reflect
the original 30-dwelling scheme originally proposed, as opposed to the plans
listed in the appeal decision letter issued by the Planning Inspectorate.

1.2 There are no impacts associated with the re-issue of a decision which is largely
seen as a procedural remedy. All material considerations pertinent to national
and local planning policy, including viability, highway safety, visual and
residential amenity have been previously considered and as such there would be
no justifiable reason to withhold consent; whilst it is appreciated that this
application has prompted a number of objections from the local community no
matters are raised which would warrant refusal of the scheme against the
backdrop of the earlier appeal decision.

1.3 As part of the submission the applicant has sought to provide details to satisfy
the submission element of the pre-commencement conditions imposed by the
Planning Inspector to negate the need for such conditions to be re-imposed.

1.4 To address the infrastructure requirements of the scheme it is intended that he
applicant will enter into a legal agreement in respect of affordable housing and
waste contributions.

2  SITE DESCRIPTION

2.1 Greenfield site with extant consent for residential development, located to the north
of Henry Warby Avenue (HWA) and south of Abington Grove, to the eastern
boundary is the village cemetery and residential development which forms part of
HWA, to the west is Atkinson’s lane which is a byway.

Page 31



3.1

3.2

3.3

PROPOSAL

It is noted that the original submission under F/'YR15/0614/F proposed a total of 30
dwellings, albeit the breakdown specified, i.e. 21 x 2-bed and 9 x 3-bed was
incorrect in that amended plans were provided during the consideration of the
scheme proposals to secure an enhanced layout. This resulted in a scheme of 30
dwellings comprising 12 x 3-bed dwellings and 18 x 2-bed dwellings and it was that
scheme that was considered by the Local Planning Authority when arriving at their
decision.

Subsequent to this an incorrect plan was submitted along with the appeal
documentation, this detailed a scheme of 20 dwellings comprising 2 x 4-bed, 8 x 3-
bed and 18 x 2-bed dwellings.

The current scheme proposals returns back to the 30 dwellings originally
proposed, i.e. 12 x 3 bed dwellings and 18 x 2-bedroom dwellings. These dwellings
entirely accord with the layout considered by the Planning Inspectorate in terms of
Plots 1 - 26; however the 2 detached dwellings shown as plots 27 and 28 are
supplemented for 4 x 3 bed units with a similar position and footprint within the
layout.

Full plans and associated documents for this application can be found at:
https://www.fenland.gov.uk/publicaccess/simpleSearchResults.do?action=firstPag
e

SITE PLANNING HISTORY

F/YR19/3070/COND Details reserved by conditions 3, 4, 5, 7, Pending
8 and 11 of appeal decision APP/D0515/
W/16/3148821 relating to planning application

F/YR15/0614/F
F/YR15/0614/F Erection of 30 x 2-storey dwellings comprising; Refused
21 x 2-bed and 9 x 3-bed 11/02/2016
Appeal
16/00019/REF Erection of 28 / 30 dwellings Allowed
(see Appeal decision) 19/09/2016
F/93/0350/F Erection of 26 houses with garages Refused
(comprising 14 x 2-bed semi-detached; 22/09/1993
10 x 3-bed semi-detached and 2 x 3-bed
detached)
CONSULTATIONS

Local Residents/Interested Parties: 12 letters of objection have been received
from 10 households

Design, Character and Amount
- Density/Overdevelopment/Design and Appearance
- This is such a tiny plot of land and to try and squeeze 2 more houses from 28

to 30 is ridiculous
- Consider development should not take place at all, however if it is given it should

Page 32


https://www.fenland.gov.uk/publicaccess/simpleSearchResults.do?action=firstPage
https://www.fenland.gov.uk/publicaccess/simpleSearchResults.do?action=firstPage

be on a smaller scale with a range of property sizes so it is in keeping with the
estate and doesn’t harm the character of the area.

- Out of character/not in keeping with area

- Since the original planning, there has been so much building in EIm and towards
Friday Bridge that now the two villages have merged into one.

- The current residential area of Henry Warby Avenue and Pear Tree Way and
Orchard Close is situated over a much larger area and is a mixture of
semi-detached houses, detached houses and bungalows and are all spread out
over different angles and give the feeling of openness and the properties do not
feel on top of one another.

- Current estate is a mix of 2, 3 and 4 bed and already quite densely built the
proposed add on it far more dense

- Surely it is better to allow smaller development over a period of time which then
allows the village time to absorb the impact of additional families and vehicles
into village life, rather than one great big hit of 30 properties; considerable
number of homes built in the village and smaller developments in the pipe line.

- Visual impact/Loss of view/Outlook

- Let’s not spoil [EIm] by over-development

- Residential amenity

- Proximity to property

Access, Traffic and highways

- Consider entrance to estate will be dangerous as the turning into that part of the
road isn’t very wide

- Parking arrangements

- Additional traffic find an alternate entry point from a road such as Wells Bank
where you would actually improve a road or don't build.

- Will just make [road condition] much worse’ issues with on-street parking on the
estate road.

- It’s only a matter of time until someone has an accident

- Access via Henry Warby Avenue is a totally shambolic concept causing
disruption to current residence and havoc on the roads during construction and
beyond

- no point was | ever informed that there was potential to increase traffic on the
estate due to expansion

- It is inconceivable that more houses resulting in even more traffic (approx 60 cars
at 2 cars per house) will be shoe-horned onto this road as there is only one
access road to this proposed development, which is already heavily congested by
on-street parking making it single file

- access to these houses would increase traffic through an already busy estate an
accident waiting to happen

- Doesn’t comply with policy

- Outside DAB

- Would set a precedent

- With planning consent given for Gosmoor and land behind the sportsman do we
really need more houses

- Light pollution, waste and litter

- Flooding

- Anti-social behaviour, Noise

- Elm is already overpopulated for the few amenities available

- Local services schools unable to cope

- Devaluation; access route would also decrease the value of the homes,
especially in Henry Warby Avenue

- Totally object, did before and will continue to do so. Laughable totally laughable.

Page 33



- This has already been rejected on more than one occasion

- Object to this application vehemently. EIm is in contrast to nearby Wisbech a
quiet, relatively traffic free, underpopulated area.

- As you drive from Wisbech into EIm the change is dramatic and it's residents do
not need such a substantial and significant influx of housing with its accompanied
increasing of its population

- The original application was denied in 2016 and | hope that it is once again
denied.

- ‘This is not a because [it] will benefit local residents in any way shape or form but
an opportunity for someone to make money at the expense of current residence.
therefore suggest as council you listen to what the residents say for change or
find jobs you are more suited to allowing us to get the right people for the job.’

- Have recently moved a few months ago into house no 14 Henry Warby Avenue
and thus was not able to voice my objections to the initial application

Trees, Environmental and Wildlife concerns

- there is a range of wildlife in the trees to be felled (numerous species of birds,
bats and hedgehogs

- Why are we destroying even more of their habitat

6 STATUTORY DUTY

6.1 Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires a
planning application to be determined in accordance with the Development Plan
unless material planning considerations indicate otherwise. The Development Plan
for the purposes of this application comprises the adopted Fenland Local Plan
(2014).

7  POLICY FRAMEWORK

7.1 National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)
Para. 2 - Applications should be determined in accordance with the development
plan, unless material considerations indicate otherwise
Para. 10 - Presumption in favour of sustainable development
Para. 12 - Presumption in favour of sustainable development does not change the
statutory status of the development plan as the starting point for decision making
Para. 47 — All applications for development shall be determined in accordance with
the development plan, unless material considerations indicate otherwise
Chapter 14 - Meeting the challenge of climate change, flooding and coastal change

7.2 National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG)

7.3 Fenland Local Plan 2014
LP1 - A Presumption in Favour of Residential Development
LP3 - Spatial Strategy, the Settlement Hierarchy and the Countryside
LP12 - Rural Areas Development Policy
LP14 - Responding to climate change and managing the risk of flooding in Fenland
LP15 - Facilitating the creation of a more sustainable transport network in Fenland
LP16 - Delivering and Protecting High Quality Environments across the District
LP19 - The Natural Environment

8 KEYISSUES

e Principle of Development
e Scheme differences

Page 34



9

9.1

9.2

S$106/Unilateral Undertaking

BACKGROUND

The LPA originally refused planning permission for 30 dwellings on the above site
under F/YR15/0614/F for the following reasons:

(1)

(2)

(4)

Policy LP3 provides that the majority of housing growth will be in and around
the market towns and allows for a small amount of development at limited
growth villages. Policy LP12 Part A provides that if proposals within or on the
edge of a limited growth village, in combination with other development built
since April 2011 and committed to be built, increase the number of dwellings
in the village by 10% then the proposal should have demonstrable evidence
of clear local community support for the scheme and if, despite a thorough
pre-application consultation exercise, demonstrable evidence of support or
objection cannot be determined, then there will be a requirement for support
from the relevant Parish Council. The proposal, in combination with the
number of built and consented dwellings within the village of Elm since April
2011 would exceed the 10% threshold set out in Policy LP12 Part A of the
Fenland Local Plan 2014 and the application is not considered to include
demonstrable evidence of clear local community support for the scheme.
Consequently the proposed development is contrary to Policy LP3 and Policy
LP12 Part A of the Fenland Local Plan 2014.

Policy LP16 part (e) requires all development to ensure that the amenities of
neighbouring users are not adversely impacted upon in terms of noise, light
pollution, loss of privacy and loss of light. The proposed access into the
development is located in close proximity to existing dwellings, namely 38,
40,42, 44 and 46 Henry Warby Avenue, and due to the large number of
dwellings proposed, the development will result in a large number of traffic
movements which would adversely impact on these properties in terms of
noise and disturbance. As such the proposal is contrary to Policy LP16 part
(e) of the Fenland Local Plan, 2014.

Policy LP5 of the Fenland Local Plan, 2014, requires all housing development
sites of 5 or more dwellings to provide affordable housing. On schemes of
more than 10 dwellings an affordable housing contribution of 25% of the
dwellings is required. The applicant has failed to enter into a Section 106
Agreement and as such the requirements of LP5 have not been met in this
instance.

Policy LP13 of the Fenland Local Plan, 2014, requires development to either
provide, or make a contribution to, local and strategic infrastructure. This
development is required to contribute to local education and waste facilities.
The applicant has failed to enter into a Section 106 Agreement to secure
these contributions and as such the requirements of LP13 have not been met
in this instance.

The application was subsequently the subject of a Planning Appeal which
was determined by the Planning Inspectorate in September 2016; at which
time the Inspector allowed the appeal; noting that:

(i) The increased levels of traffic would not harm the living conditions of

the occupiers of neighbouring properties by reason of significant
increased levels of noise and disturbance.

Page 35



(ii) ‘No objections were raised [by the Local Highways Authority] with
regard to traffic generation and any parking problems arising from the
development on Henry Warby Avenue. Furthermore, it was
commented that the access width to the development is acceptable.
Although [the Inspector] note[d] the concerns on residents on these
matters, there [was] no compelling evidence to point to highway safety
issues and therefore [...] no reason to disagree with the District
Council on the acceptability of proposal in highway safety terms.’

(i) A unilateral undertaking had been submitted which secured ‘a
contribution of £15,000 towards the provision of off-site affordable
housing, £40,000 towards the provision of education facilities and
£5,000 towards waste management. Additionally, there is a monitoring
contribution of £1,500.” The Inspector found that the unilateral
undertaking in so far as it related to affordable housing contributions
and waste contributions were fully justified and would be fairly and
reasonably related in scale and kind to the development; therefore
meeting the tests of Regulation 122 of the Community Infrastructure
Regulations (CIL) 2010 (as amended). The inspector having
considered revised birth rate predications did not accept that the
education contributions specified were justified as reduced birth rates
had freed up capacity at the local school, it was also found that the
monitoring contributions specified did not meet the CIL tests.

(iv)  In considering the appropriateness of the site for development and the
plans put forward the Inspector noted that there was a lack of clear
demonstrable evidence of support, however there was also a lack of
identified adverse impacts. It was considered that the proposal did not
conflict with the strategy of delivering sustainable growth, and the
Inspector concluded that ‘looking at the development plan in the round,
the proposal would comply with it as a whole.’

9.3 In essence the application seeks to supplement the plans listed in the plan
schedule on the original consent that was allowed at appeal, as whilst the
description of development on the Inspectors decision letter referenced
30 houses the site plan that was approved, referred to at condition 2, was for 28
dwellings. Whilst the applicant’s representatives approached the Planning
Inspectorate to seek an amended decision letter, sometime later, they referred
the applicants representatives back to the Local Planning Authority to resolve.

10 ASSESSMENT
Principle of Development

10.1  The original application considered by the District Council and subsequently by
the Planning Inspectorate detailed a development of 30 dwellings; in the appeal
statements submitted by the appellant’s representatives and that submitted by
the Local Planning Authority again there were clear references to a 30 dwelling
scheme. Accordingly it is clear that the principle of the development shown is
clearly acceptable and policy compliant as it has been accepted by the Planning
Inspectorate as such; this being the overriding material planning consideration in
the assessment of this submission.

Page 36



Scheme differences

10.2 The change relates to the south-western corner of the site and the approved plan
shows two detached properties with garaging at Plots 27 and 28; whilst the plan
now proposed (which was originally considered as part of the 2015 application),
shows 2 pairs of semi-detached dwellings (Plots 27 - 30).

10.3 Again it is contended that both the LPA and the Planning Inspectorate would
have evaluated the impacts of a 30-dwelling scheme and whilst the comments of
the local residents are noted there could be no reasonable grounds to withhold a
consent against the backdrop outlined above.

S106/Unilateral Undertaking

10.4 A unilateral undertaking secured a contribution of £15,000 towards the provision
of off-site affordable housing, £40,000 towards the provision of education facilities
and £5,000 towards waste management. Additionally, there was a monitoring
contribution of £1,500 outlined in the obligation. However whilst the affordable
housing and waste contributions were accepted as CIL compliant by the Planning
Inspector the education and monitoring contributions were deemed to fail the
tests of Regulation 122 of CIL; accordingly education and monitoring
contributions would have fallen away.

10.5 To ensure that the scheme maintains the level of contributions originally deemed
appropriate and policy compliant the agent has been tasked with the preparation
of an updated obligation and this is anticipated to be forthcoming shortly.

Conditions

10.6 Conditions were imposed in respect of the appeal decision issued and the
applicant had sought to discharge these in parallel to the submission of this
variation application (see history section)

10.7 Given the impending start date it was considered a pragmatic response to
amalgamate the submission elements of these conditions; i.e. materials schedule
(3), hard surfacing (4), landscaping (5), landscape management plan (7),
bioundary treatments (8), drainage (10) and construction management (11) with
this submission to enable the consent to be issued without encumberance, save
for the need to deliver the scheme in accorandance with these details.

10.8 The start date (1) will reflect that specified in the original decision letter issued by
the Planning Inspectorate and the plan schedule (2) will be amended to reflect
the site layout considered as part of this submission, utilising the approved plan
condition as No. 10. Conditions 6 and 9 will require on-site compliance and will
be re-imposed (with modification to reflect the site plan referred to above).

11  CONCLUSIONS

11.1 This submission purely seeks to rectify an error within the decision letter as issued
by the Planning Inspectorate. It is clear that the ‘amount’ of development
considered at appeal totalled 30 dwellings and whilst the plan schedule quoted an
incorrect plan reference there could be no doubt that the Planning Inspectorate
based its consideration of the scheme on a 30 unit scheme.

Page 37



11.2 Notwithstanding the above the amended layout to the south-western corner of the

12

RECOMMENDATION

site has no associated residential amenity impacts, nor would the traffic generated
by 4 extra bedrooms across the entire development be so significant as to render
the scheme unacceptable.

Grant subject to prior completion of Unilateral Undertaking/S106 variation
and conditions

The development hereby permitted shall begin no later than 18"
September 2019.

The development shall be constructed in materials as specified on
drawing number [...].

Reason - To safeguard the visual amenities of the area and ensure
compliance with Policy LP16 of the Fenland Local Plan, adopted May
2014.

The development shall be finished in hard surfacing materials as
specified on drawing number [...].

Reason - To ensure compliance with Section 51 of the Planning and
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

All planting, seeding or turfing comprised in the approved details of
landscaping as detailed on drawing number: 5251-PL01a shall be
carried out in the first planting and seeding season following the first
occupation of the dwellings hereby permitted, whichever, is the sooner;
and any trees or plants which within a period of 5 years from the
completion of the development die, are removed or become seriously
damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the next planting season
with others of similar size and species.

Reason - To ensure proper implementation of the agreed landscape
details in the interest of the amenity value of the development.

Development shall be undertaken fully in accordance with landscape
management plan reference [....].

Reason - To ensure proper implementation of the agreed landscape
details in the interest of the amenity value of the development.

The approved boundary treatments on each plot, as shown on drawing
number 5251-PL01a, shall be implemented prior to the first occupation
of the associated dwelling.

Reason - To safeguard the residential amenity of neighbouring
occupiers, in accordance with policy LP16 of the Fenland Local Plan,
adopted May 2014.

The scheme for parking and manoeuvring shown on drawing no. 5251-
PLO1a shall be laid out prior to the initial occupation of the
development hereby permitted and these areas shall not thereafter be

Page 38



used for any other purpose.

Reason - In the interests of highway safety and to ensure compliance
with Policies LP15 and LP16 of the Fenland Local Plan, adopted May
2014.

Development shall not commence until surface drainage works for the
development have been submitted to and approved in writing by the
local planning authority. The approved drainage works shall be
completed before the first occupation of the permitted development and
retained thereafter in accordance with the approved details.

Reason - To ensure a satisfactory method of surface water drainage and
to prevent the increased risk of flooding.

Development shall be undertaken fully in accordance with the
Construction Management Statement hereby approved throughout the
construction period.

Reason - To safeguard the residential amenity of neighbouring
occupiers, in accordance with policies LP2 and LP16 of the Fenland
Local Plan, adopted May 2014.

10.

Approved Plans

Page 39



reated on: N
Created on: 28/06/2019 F/YR19/0556/VOC A Fenland
© Crown Copyright and database

rights 2019 Ordnance Survey 10023778 Scale = 1 :1 ,250

CAMBRIDGESHIRE

Fenland District Council

Page 40



N
Cemetery Q

. \ \ /# \ /K O Cemetery Cott ﬁ
\ _ : 1.800m close boarded fence M

: Chapel

/ \
14| 13 12 11 10 | 9 ~
11 110
T BT
B BT
1.800m close boarded fence 14 = m Ell - 11 110 FIFILI2/300
15 |14 9|1 -
- [ ==
SO - o>
00 - m |13 [12 - . ‘ i 3
Bin collection 9 9 /@ Crown Copyright 20 \
o Point
O o '
2 5 : 5 Location Plan 1:1250
$LA ) 1.800m close boarded fence 16 16

C

7 718 19 | 20

21 |21

18 |19 N \_ v 1.800m «
18 T i
FURLLLR B350 AP 583%4 . D Slabbed area for wheeled bin collection
HELL2LBE(
. 18 19 Tl 4 There are no existing trees within the site.
I 7 ,
20 22 § wF = SP SHRUB PLANTING TO INCLUDE
— E Recycling wheeled bins BARBERRY(BERBERRIS) GUELDER ROSE(VIBURNUM)
_ E- =S| _ 6 ———— @ BUDDLEIA DAVIDII,FORSYTHIA X INTERMEDIA LYNWOOD
@ 56 - - 20 |22 |22 mm_u W MOCK ORANGE(PHILADELPHUS)SNOWY MESPILUS(AMELANCHIER)
6 C3 POT SIZE
= . o= PLANTING SIZE 40-60cm
S 5 PLANTED AT 750mm cts
) w_u F12-300 m m
29 |28 = L= I LTRSS zsan) - GC GROUND COVER PLANTS
w mou 23 |23 = i 1,800m close boarded fence COTONEASTER HORIZONTALIS,
== — ﬁx —— B HEDERA HELIX,LAVANDULA SPICA
29 |28 & 27 23 g — % 4 4 6 PLANTS PER METRE SQ.
FIFIL2l400 k.F.L.2.400 o4 %7
3
m L >4 — = TREE PLANTING
8 24 S 3 b o 3 A SILVER BIRCH - BETULA
&/ - iy A = . B CHERRY - PRUNUS
bo% E_Wﬂ 5500 i __1.800m close boarded fence C WHITEBEAM - SORBUS
£ FFH2300 25 2 %11.%&
S 30| 29 28 | 27 25 7 ; 2 TREE'S PLANTED TO BE 1.800m HIGH
Mom% Q 1.800m close boarded fence m |..
A (B 26 1 = 1.800m close boarded fence N
@ Mﬁwm Nm - 26 \_ Revision A 02/11/2015 Layout amended
Internal boundaries B 1
1.800m close boarded fence

—— "Detortumphrey Associates ™

ARCHITECTURAL DESIGN AND BUILDING

Section of drain

| piped and filled PROJECT

PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT

SITE

OFF HENRY WARBY AVENUE

ELM
WISBECH

DRAWING

PLANNING

CLIENT

GEMDOME LTD

DATE MAY2015  SCALE Asshown JoNo. 5251-PL01a

DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS DRAWING

COPYRIGHT: THIS DRAWING MUST NOT BE ISSUED, LOANED OR COPIED
WITHOUT THE CONSENT OF PETER HUMPHREY ASSOCIATES

DotertlumphroyAssociates

2% £ ARCHITECTURAL DESIGN AND BUILDING
TELEPHONE: 01945 466 966
FAX: 01945 466 433
2.49 E-MAIL: info@peterhumphrey.co.uk
30 OLD MARKET WISBECH CAMBS PE13 1NB

North.

’ +
& 2.55 5 =
¥ ¥ L+ Building
: ge %u« 262 2 Desige Aivord
) " Enon 4
Calegery W& mmer 03,0010
Chamani] e’ reir 0HC




7934

<+
0
~
M

Kitchen/Dining Kitchen/Dining

4828

FLOOR PLAN

SCALE 1:100

Il
il

> =

e
[ —

2364 P 2364 ®

Note

2728

FLOOR PLAN

SCALE 1:100

PLOTS 1-2

@ ]

no

landing window

OOt

[ ]

[

FRONT ELEVATION

SCALE 1:100

Kitchen

1S Kitchen

FLOOR PLAN

SCALE 1:100

oo ; ] TTTTTTITT

4712

SIDE ELEVATION

SCALE 1:100

Bedroom 2

Bedroom 3

Bedroom 1

Bedroom 2

FLOOR PLAN

SCALE 1:100

REAR ELEVATION

SCALE 1:100

SIDE ELEVATION

SCALE 1:100

EEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEE

m|s
)

U OO I OO U OO O OO O I O O O O O oo

"Detortumphrey Associates ™

ARCHITECTURAL DESIGN AND BUILDING

PROJECT

PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT

SITE

HENRY WARBY AVENUE

ELM
WISBECH

DRAWING

PLANNING

CLIENT

GEMDOME LTD

SCALE AsShown JoeNo. 5251-PL02b

DATE MAY 2015

DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS DRAWING

COPYRIGHT: THIS DRAWING MUST NOT BE ISSUED, LOANED OR COPIED
WITHOUT THE CONSENT OF PETER HUMPHREY ASSOCIATES

SIDE ELEVATION

SCALE 1:100

REAR ELEVATION

SCALE 1:100

SIDE ELEVATION

SCALE 1:100

FRONT ELEVATION

SCALE 1:100

DotertlumphroyAssociates

ARCHITECTURAL DESIGN AND BUILDING
TELEPHONE: 01945 466 966
FAX: 01945 466 433
E-MAIL: info@peterhumphrey.co.uk
30 OLD MARKET WISBECH CAMBS PE13 1NB

rm_..__n_:_u_
N et Kot

Calegery W& mmer 03,0010
Chamani] e’ reir 0HC

Page 42



o o0 o

OO UL

] S i 11 OT I 7
[ ] [ ]

FRONT ELEVATION SIDE ELEVATION REAR ELEVATION SIDE ELEVATION

SCALE 1:100 SCALE 1:100 SCALE 1:100 SCALE 1:100

00
00

=

FLOOR PLAN

SCALE 1:100

<~
[°
~
M

Kitchen/Dining

4828

FLOOR PLAN

SCALE 1:100

PLOTS 3-6,27-28,29-30

9727

Page 43

"Detortumphrey Associates ™

ARCHITECTURAL DESIGN AND BUILDING

PROJECT
FLOOR PLAN FLOOR PLAN PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT
SITE
HENRY WARBY AVENUE
ELM
WISBECH
DRAWING
PLANNING

CLIENT

GEMDOME LTD
\:/ /F DATE MAY 2015  SCALE AsShown JoeNo. 5251-PL03a
/

T DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS DRAWING

: _m_ _m_ : _m_ _m_ COPYRIGHT: THIS DRAWING MUST NOT BE ISSUED, LOANED OR COPIED

WITHOUT THE CONSENT OF PETER HUMPHREY ASSOCIATES

DotertlumphroyAssociates

ARCHITECTURAL DESIGN AND BUILDING

FRONT ELEVATION SIDE ELEVATION REAR ELEVATION SIDE ELEVATION N
SCALE 1:100 SCALE 1:100 SCALE 1:100 SCALE 1:100 MAIL: info@peterhumphrey.co.uk

rm:__n_:_.._
N et Kot

Calegery W& mmer 03,0010
Chamani] e’ reir 0HC




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 8

F/YR19/0566/F

Applicant: Mr & Mrs J Cook Agent : Mr Lee Bevens

L Bevens Associates Ltd

Land West Of 110, Westfield Road, Manea, Cambridgeshire

Erect 1 dwelling (2-storey 4-bed) including an office and a detached double
garage in association with existing business.

Reason for Committee: Number of letters of support contrary to the officer
recommendation.

1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1.The proposal is for the construction of a two-storey dwelling with detached
double garage on land outside but adjacent to the edge of the settlement of
Manea, on land designated as Flood Zone 3, the zone of highest flood risk.

1.2. The applicant states that the dwelling is required on the site to provide
additional security to the existing haulage business operating from the
adjacent site to the north, and would also result in sustainability benefits. The
applicant’s current address is located approximately 200 metres from the site.

1.3. The application is not accompanied by any information demonstrating the
need for a 24-hour on-site presence.

1.4. The application is not accompanied by a sequential test exploring the
availability of alternative sites in locations of lower flood risk.

1.5.The location of the proposed development would be at odds with the
prevailing character of residential development in the area, which is
predominantly frontage development along the main streets.

1.6. Recommendation is to refuse planning permission.

2. SITE DESCRIPTION

2.1.

2.2.

The application site is an area of maintained grassland surrounded by a 2 metre
high chainlink fence supported on concrete posts with barbed wire topping for
security purposes. 7-bar steel gates close off the vehicular access to the site
and the adjacent premises.

To the immediate north of the application site lie three storage buildings
associated with the applicant’s haulage business, with substantial amounts of
concrete hardstanding and turning area for the vehicles and products
associated with that use. To the west and south of the application site lies open
agricultural land outside the applicant’s ownership.

Page 45



2.3. East of the application site are located a group of four large residential dwellings
constructed under consents ranging from 2011 to 2017. These properties
benefit from rear aspects facing north west, although only 110 Westfield Road is
likely to be directly affected by the proposed dwelling.

24, Access to the highway network is via an existing access to the haulage
business off Westfield Road opposite Fallow Corner Drove, with a driveway
being located behind where the gate currently closes off the site, although the
gate is proposed to be relocated further into the site as part of the scheme. A
public right of way runs adjacent to the south boundary of the site, and a second
along the eastern boundary. Neither are directly affected by the specific
proposals.

2.5. The application site is located within flood zone 3.
3. PROPOSAL

3.1. The proposal is for the construction of a 4-bedroomed detached 2-storey
dwelling with a separate double garage on the site, including an office to be
utilised in conjunction with the haulage business. The dwelling detailed on the
plans is stated as being 251m? floor area, with an additional 44m? floor area for
the garage. The office use associated with the haulage business comprises
22.3m? of the floorspace of the dwelling, which equates to 8.9% of the floor area
of the dwelling and 7.6% of the total floorspace proposed on the site.

3.2 The dwelling is to be raised up above the ground level of the site to mitigate
against the risk of flooding, by 1.05 metres at the front entrance and 1.6 metres
at the rear elevation due to the natural slope of the land.

3.3. Full plans and associated documents for this application can be found at:
https://www.fenland.gov.uk/publicaccess/applicationDetails.do?active Tab=docu
ments&keyVal=PTSYUEHEOG6P0O

4. SITE PLANNING HISTORY

4.1. There is no specific site history, however the following applications relate to the
adjacent land within the applicant’s ownership forming the agricultural haulage
business to which the application relates.

F/0650/83/F Erection of a steel Permission 23/9/83
framed agricultural
general purpose building

F/92/0523/AG1 Erection of a storage Further details not
building required 9/11/92

F/YR00/0624/AG1 | Erection of general Further details not
purpose agricultural required 27/7/00
building

F/YR18/0123/AG1 | Erection of an agricultural | Further details not
storage building required 2/3/18

While the applications relate to agricultural development there is no evidence
provided as part of the current application to demonstrate that the site is in
agricultural use

Page 46


https://www.fenland.gov.uk/publicaccess/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=documents&keyVal=PTSYUEHE06P00
https://www.fenland.gov.uk/publicaccess/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=documents&keyVal=PTSYUEHE06P00

5. CONSULTATIONS

5.1. Parish Council: No objections but would request the house is tied to the
operation of the business.

5.2. FDC Environmental Health: No objections, but would question if the intention
is to tie the occupation of the building to the business due to the proximity to its
premises and the potential for associated noise impacts.

5.3. Cambridgeshire County Council Highways Authority: No objection subject
to a condition regarding parking arrangements.

54. Natural England: Proposal requires the assessment of recreational pressure
impacts on sensitive Sites of Special Scientific Interest

5.5. Environment Agency: No objection. Note that the lack of objection does not
mean that the scheme is considered to have passed the sequential test.

5.6. Local Residents/Interested Parties: 9 responses have been received in
support of the proposal from 8 separate sources noting the following
justification. The letters received bear distinct similarities in style and content
and appear to have been submitted to trigger the need to report the application
to the planning committee in case of a recommendation for refusal.
¢ Known the applicant for a number of years and know that they have run a
successful business from the site for many years.

e The proposal will allow the applicant to be closer to the business, providing
additional security.

e The proposal will result in fewer trips to and from the site from their place of
residence, making it more sustainable.

e There are already several large self-building dwellings near the site and the
scheme would be in keeping with them and respect their privacy.

6. STATUTORY DUTY

6.1. Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires a
planning application to be determined in accordance with the Development Plan
unless material planning considerations indicate otherwise. The Development
Plan for the purposes of this application comprises the adopted Fenland Local
Plan (2014).

7. POLICY FRAMEWORK

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)

Para 2: NPPF is a material consideration

Para 8: 3 strands of sustainability

Para 11: Presumption in favour of sustainable development

Para 78: Housing should be located where it will enhance or maintain the vitality
of rural communities.

Para 79: Avoid the development of isolated homes in the countryside unless
specified exceptions apply

Para 127: Well-designed development

Para 130: Permission should be refused for development of poor design that
fails to take opportunities for improving the character and quality of an area.

Page 47



Para 155: Development should be directed away from areas at highest risk of
flooding.

Para 157: Need to apply the sequential and exceptions tests.

Para 158: Development should not be permitted if there are reasonably
available sites in areas at lower risk of flooding.

Para 159-161: Need for the exception test.

National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG)
Determining a planning application

Fenland Local Plan 2014

LP1 — A Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development

LP2 — Facilitating Health and Wellbeing of Fenland Residents

LP3 — Spatial Strategy, the Settlement Hierarchy and the Countryside

LP4 — Housing

LP12 — Rural Areas Development Policy

LP14 — Responding to Climate Change and Managing the Risk of Flooding in
Fenland

LP16 — Delivering and Protecting High Quality Environments across the District

8. KEY ISSUES

Principle of Development

Justification for the Location of the Dwelling
Flood Risk

Visual Impact & Character

Residential Amenity

Highway Safety

Other Matters

9. BACKGROUND

9.1. There is no background relevant to the current proposal. The application has not
been the subject of pre-application advice.

10. ASSESSMENT

Principle of Development

10.1.  The application site is located outside the developed part of the settlement of
Manea, but immediately adjacent to the current edge of the village. Manea is
identified within the settlement hierarchy set out in policy LP3 of the Fenland
Local Plan (2014) as a Growth Village, where development within the existing
urban area or as small village extensions will be appropriate albeit at a more
limited scale than that appropriate to the Market Towns. Policy LP12 of the
Fenland Local Plan (2014) indicates that sites adjacent to the existing
developed footprint of a village can be considered for development subject to
site specific impacts.

Justification for the Location of the Dwelling

10.2. The Design and Access Statement submitted alongside the application states in
section 4 that “a key consideration in the development of the proposal is that the
applicant currently lives in Manea but has to make regular trips from home to the
site and back again as part of his daily routine.” The statement then goes on to
assert that the proposal would therefore provide a more sustainable solution,
avoiding regular car trips and providing security for the site.

Page 48



10.3.

10.4.

10.5.

10.6.

10.7.

10.8.

From the application form submitted alongside the application, and as noted
above, the applicant currently resides in Manea. The address given is located
approximately 200 metres from the application site however, and as a result it is
not considered that the scheme would result in significant sustainability benefits
given that the existing distances involved in travelling from their place of
residence to the site are well within what would be considered to be a
reasonable walking distance, taking approximately 272 minutes to walk at
average walking speeds.

The application also states that there will be increased security for the business
from living adjacent to its premises. Security is a matter to be considered in
relation to the acceptability or otherwise of a planning application, however it
would not be uncommon or unreasonable for a business premises of the type
present on the adjacent land to operate under a scheme of security cameras
and alarms typical of the majority of commercial premises, and the site is
overlooked from the adjacent dwellings to the east that provide natural
surveillance of the premises. There are no welfare issues to consider from
livestock present at the site. No evidence has been provided alongside the
application of a history of crime or theft from the premises.

It is not considered therefore that the increased security from the applicant
residing adjacent to the site is a material factor sufficient to overcome the policy
requirement to direct development away from such sites.

Flood Risk

The site is located within an area designated as Flood Zone 3. Policy LP14 of
the Fenland Local Plan and paragraph 157 of the National Planning Policy
Framework require development to be the subject of a sequential test, which
aims to direct new development to areas at the lowest risk of flooding.

The application is accompanied by a flood risk assessment, which states that
the site is protected by flood defences that were not considered when flood
zones were designated and therefore the site has a low probability of flooding
when these are taken into account. It then goes on to state that the proposed
dwelling is to be occupied by the manager of West Wood Farm to facilitate its
day to day running and therefore the development cannot be undertaken at an
alternative site.

This does not constitute a sequential test. The matter of need for the dwelling to
be located on the site is addressed above, however given the number of
permissions currently in place within the village of Manea on land not within
flood zone 3 that would meet the functional requirements of the application in
terms of the number of dwellings to be provided it is not considered that a
sequential test would be passed.

Visual Impact & Character

The proposed dwelling is of substantial scale, the raising of the floor levels due
to flood risk meaning a ridge height of 9.7 metres is proposed, with an overall
width of 18.1 metres (not including chimney/bay window). In height terms this is
proportionate to the recently approved dwellings to the east fronting Westfield
Road, and although those properties are also approximately 18 metres in width,
their built form incorporates double garaging to the side of the main dwellings
meaning the residential part of the properties is generally of the order of 12
metres wide. The application proposes a detached garage 7.3 metres wide by

Page 49



10.9.

10.10.

10.11.

10.12.

10.13.

10.14.

6.8 metres deep in addition to the 18 metre width of the house located forward
of the proposed front elevation and facing the vehicular access to the premises.

The site would mainly be visible when approaching Manea from the south west
along Toll Drove where the built environment consists of the recently
constructed dwellings fronting Westfield Road and Fallow Corner Drove, with
the application site forming a green open space in front of the commercial
buildings comprising the storage units for the agricultural and general haulage
use of the adjacent land.

The proposal would introduce an additional element of residential development
away from the existing strong focus of residential dwellings comprising frontage
development along Westfield Road and Fallow Corner Drove, introducing a
more backland style relationship which would be detrimental to the distinct
character of the area and the entrance to the village.

Residential Amenity

The proposed dwelling is located with its front elevation facing towards the
adjacent dwellings to the east of the site from a distance of approximately 20
metres. Two of the first floor bedrooms within the dwelling and its gallery landing
look out towards this boundary, beyond which is the private residential garden of
110 Westfield Road. Policy LP16 of the Fenland Local Plan (2014) requires
development not to adversely impact on the amenity of neighbouring users due
to issues such as a loss of privacy. Although there would be the potential for
some views of the neighbouring private amenity space should the dwelling be
permitted, the distance between the windows in question and the adjacent
garden, combined with the partial restriction of such views due to the position of
the proposed double garage is such that the impact will not be sufficient to
justify refusal of the scheme.

Turning to the matter of the residential amenities of the dwelling itself, it is noted
that the scheme meets the one third plot size requirement for private amenity
space set out in policy LP16. The comments of the Environmental Health team
are also noted regarding the potential for the operation of the adjacent business
to constitute a detrimental impact on the residential amenity of the property itself
and the associated need to tie the occupation of the building to the operation of
the adjacent business.

Highway Safety

The proposal is to use the existing vehicular access from Westfield Road that
currently serves the haulage business to allow the occupants of the dwelling to
access the wider highway network. Given the use of this current access by
HGV’s and the comparatively low levels of additional traffic that would result
from the additional use by a single dwelling, the proposal is considered not to
have a detrimental impact on highway safety, although the request for the
proposed parking and turning facilities to be available on site prior to the
occupation of the dwelling is noted.

Other Matters

The comments from Natural England are noted with regard to the impact of the
proposal on the Ouse Washes SSSI. The proposal is for a single dwelling and
the guidance provided by Natural England with regard to the screening of such
proposals indicates that “it should be possible for most proposals below 50
dwellings to be screened out for likely significant effect.” Notwithstanding that
statement however, the application does not include any supporting justification

Page 50



to screen out the potential recreational pressure impacts of the proposal on the
SSSI.

11. CONCLUSIONS

11.1.

11.2.

11.3.

11.4.

11.5.

Despite their assertion that the proposal would result in greater security for the
commercial operations undertaken from the adjacent land to the north of the
application site, the applicant has not demonstrated any functional requirement
for them to be resident on the land that would preclude them being resident in
the wider vicinity of the site as is currently the case. As a result, the proposal is
required to be subject to a sequential test given its location within flood zone 3.

The application is not accompanied by a sequential test with regards to flood
risk. It is therefore contrary to the requirements of policy LP15 of the Fenland
Local Plan (2014) and paragraph 158 of the National Planning Policy
Framework (2019), which justify its refusal. This approach is supported by
decisions made by the Planning Inspectorate, most recently under appeal
APP/D0515/W18/3218952 where the Inspector concluded that development not
within flood zone 1 needed to be the subject of a Sequential Test.

The proposal would result in a new residential dwelling beyond the current
developed part of the village, in a location that would detract from the distinctive
character of its surroundings. In particular, this is due to the detached nature of
the site from the highway network, where the predominant character of
development is for properties to be in close proximity to and fronting the
highway. The proposal would as a result be contrary to the provisions of policies
LP12 and LP16 of the Fenland Local Plan (2014).

The proposal will have some impact on the residential amenity of the
neighbouring property to the east, known as 110 Westfield Road, however this
would not be of sufficient magnitude to warrant the refusal of the application on
these grounds.

The scheme will not have any adverse highway impacts, and although no
supporting justification is given to confirm that the proposal will not have an
adverse impact on the recreational pressures from residential development on
the nearby Ouse Washes Site of Special Scientific Interest, this is not sufficient
to justify refusal of the scheme in view of the scale of the proposal and the lack
of likely effects.

12. RECOMMENDATION

Refuse, for the following reasons.

1. Policy LP14 part B of the Fenland Local Plan (2014) states that “all
development proposals should adopt a sequential approach to flood risk
from all forms of flooding” and that “development in areas known to be
at risk from any form of flooding will only be permitted following...the
successful completion of a sequential test”. No justification has been
provided demonstrating that a dwelling is required on the site to facilitate
the operation of the adjacent haulage business. The application is not
accompanied by a sequential test and on that basis, the proposal is
contrary to the requirements of policy LP14 of the Fenland Local Plan
(2014), and paragraphs 155-165 of the National Planning Policy
Framework (2019).

Page 51




2. Policy LP14 part B of the Fenland Local Plan sets out the requirements
for development proposals to undertake a sequential test, whilst section
4 of the Cambridgeshire Flood and Water Supplementary Planning
Document (2016) sets out the process for undertaking such as test. This
process requires developers to identify and list reasonably available
sites, obtain flood risk information for those sites and state reasons why
they are unsuitable for the development or are not available. Given the
number of sites that are considered to be reasonably available within
the adjacent settlement of Manea that could accommodate the quantum
of development proposed, and their location within areas identified as
being within flood zone 1, the application site would not be able to pass
the sequential test and the scheme is therefore contrary to policy LP14
part B, and paragraph 158 of the National Planning Policy Framework
(2019).

3. Policy LP16 of the Fenland Local Plan (2014) requires new
development to make a positive contribution to the local distinctiveness
and character of an area, enhancing its setting and not adversely
impacting on the street scene and settlement pattern of an area. Policy
LP12 requires development adjacent to villages to not have an adverse
impact on the character and appearance of the surrounding countryside
and farmland, and be in a location in keeping with the core shape and
form of the settlement without adversely affecting its character and
appearance. The site of the proposed dwelling is at odds with the
prevailing character of residential development in the area, which is
characterised by frontage development along Westfield Road and
Fallow Corner Drove. The scheme would extend the residential
development of the settlement out into the countryside in front of the
existing agricultural style storage buildings to the north of the site, which
provide a visual link between the settlement and the more open
countryside beyond. The proposal would therefore be contrary to the
requirements of policies LP12 and LP16 of the Fenland Local Plan
(2014) and the aims and objectives of section 12 of the National
Planning Policy Framework (2019).

Page 52



West Wood

Farm

. Boundary Stone
Guide

Post 7

Old
Weighbridge

Created on: 04/07/2019

F/YR19/0566/F

© Crown Copyright and database
rights 2019 Ordnance Survey 10023778

Scale = 1:1,250

N

A

Fenland

CAMBRIDGESHIRE

Fenland District Council

Page 53




Scale: 1:200

I \ \ \ \ \ \ \
Om 2 4 6 8 10m 20m

DILAPIDATED
0.28
S
AU
0.24 457& 059
0.06

\/ 0.30

&
& 0.30
$

s

G

/ 4®
T 095 Lb8 "

s 115

-016

118
-0.11

~015 0.88

1.01

112
0.30

1.09

CONCRETE

L

&
045 -0.10 Qé’
G

117
0.92

0.29 117

0.78 L1l

0.24
New hedge planting to boundary
of Viburnum Opulus (30%),
Cornus Sanguinea (30%)

and Hawthorn species (40%) —|

0.02

i 1,09 119
consist

—0.26 -0.10

New 1.2m high timber post and rail fencing (to
detail) with native species hedge planting.

New hedge planting to,houndary to consist 119
of Viburnum Opulus (30%),
Cornus Sanguinea (30%)
and Hawthornlgpecies (40%) 113
Ly

0.05

-0.18 New 1.2m high timber post and ra
fencing (to detail) with native

species hedge planting.

1.02

1.15
-0.04

-0.19 114

-0,16

-0es

31339N0J

112

-0.29

-0.18

-017

specificafjon.

New hedge planting to boundary to consist toe

of Viburnum Opulus (30%),
Cornus Sanguinea (30%)
and Hawthorn species (40%)

Gravel surface treatment
(Permeable)

0.54
isting wire mesh fence removed and replaced
0.30 with 1.2m imber post and rail fencing (to 0:63

detail) with native sp edge planting.

PROPOSED TREE PLANTING

Nr [ Abbreviated Text | Class __[IPlant Name [ Height/Spread/Grade | Girth | Container Root_[Density Density Type|
2 | MGH | Tree  [Malus 'Golden Hornet } 300-350 10-12 (250 C
RpB - s

[ Tree  [TRobinia pseud: [10-12 1450 [C [ [

CONCRETE

[ENS]

Lie

OUTLINE SPECIFICATION NOTES.

Implementation

Soft land: ing to be ti bled and i d during the first planting season (Mid-November to Mid-March) after the substantial completion of the hardworks.

Topsoil preparation

Shrub beds and hedgerows shall be topsoiled to a depth of 300mm. Grass areas shall be topsoiled to a depth of 150mm.

Tree pits within soft landscape areas shall be excavated to a minimum size of 600 x 600 x 600 deep and backfilled with approved topsoil and 100mm depth of peat
free compost. All tree pits to be thoroughly decompacted across base and sides prior to back-filling.

All planting beds and hedgerows shall be covered with 50mm depth of peat free compost across all beds prior to final cultivation.

Proposed Trees

Trees shall be supplied to the sizes and stock shown on the plant schedule and planted in the locations shown. Each specimen tree shall have a single leader with a
well developed, balanced crown and clear, straight stem

Trees 10-12 cm girth and above shall have a double stake located to each side of the rootball within the pit.

Prop native shrub, shrub and hedgerow areas

The topsoil in areas planted with shrubs and hedgerow plants shall be 300mm deep.All beds shall be cultivated to a depth of 250mm.

Hedgerow plants shall be planted in the centre of the prepared trench a minimum of 750mm wide and 300mm deep in a single row at 3/m located at the centre of
the trench.

Turf Areas
Rear garden to be cultivated only and left to the occupier to either seed or turf unless otherwise instructed by the client.
A circle of 1m dlameter shall be cut around the base of all trees located within grass areas to allow for bark mulch.

Maintenance
To comply with planning conditions the site shall be maintained for a period of 5 years by the contractor, resident or client as applicable.

BIO-DIVERSITY ENHANCEMENTS.

1. Bird boxes

Bird boxes to be provided on gable ends of garage as appropriate. These should be installed at least 3m

above the ground level and should avoid direct sunlight (not directly south facing), prevailing wind, and

be out of reach of cats and other predators.

A smaller, open fronted box, made to BTO dimensions )for song thrush, robin and spotted flycatcher)

® Three hole-box type bird boxes with 32mm holes for house sparrows and starlings - which should be
located in a group for this colonial nesting species. |

G abed
v,

ak

PWF

PWF

ENC]

igh secure fencing to clients

fxistinglgate removed and relocated back to
provideladditional security to site.

North

DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS DRAWING

THIS DRAWING AND THE BUILDING WORKS DEPICTED ARE THE COPYRIGHT OF

L BEVENS ASSOCIATES ARCHITECTS LTD AND MAY NOT BE REPRODUCED OR AMENDED
EXCEPT BY WRITTEN PERMISSION. NO LIABILITY WILL BE ACCEPTED FOR AMENDMENTS
MADE BY OTHER PERSONS. COPYRIGHT 2019 ©.

ALL MEASUREMENTS SHOULD BE CHECKED ON SITE AND ANY DISCREPANCIES SHOULD
REPORTED TO THE ORIGINATOR.

ALL WORKS TO COMPLY WITH CURRENT CDM REGULATIONS AS APPROPRIATE. IT IS THE
CLIENT'S RESPOSIBILITY TO FULLY COMPLY WITH THE CDM 2015 REGULATIONS INCLUDING
APPOINTING A PRINCIPAL DESIGNER AND PRINCIPAL CONTRACTOR FOR PROJECTS WITH
MORE THAN ONE CONTRACTOR ON SITE.

NO WORKS TO COMMENCE ON SITE UNTIL ALL APPROVALS ARE CONFIRMED IN WRITING.
L BEVENS ASSOCIATES ARCHITECTS LTD ACCEPTS NO LIABILITY IF THIS IS BREACHED.

IT IS THE CONTRACTORS RESPONSIBILITY TO ACCURATELY LOCATE EXISTING SERVICES
PRIOR TO WORKS COMMENCING.

e

Boundary Stone
Guide Post

B

X

Stone

Ordnangé Survey (c

019. All rights reserved. Licence number 100022432

125mm X 75mm Softwood Posts At 1.5m Ctr's
weathered one way. Horizontal rails 100 x 38mm section

1200mm High Post and Rail Fence 1:50

L Bevens Associates Architects Ltd

The Doghouse

10 Cricketers Way

Chatteris

Cambridgeshire
“i; PE16 6UR

Tel: 01354 693969
L BEVENS

Mob: 07739 562818
Associates Ltd

Email: enquiries@lbevens-associatesltd.co.uk

Architects Web: www.|lbevens-associatesltd.co.uk

DRAWING
STATUS

PRELIMINARY ]
PLANNING [ ]

CLIENT

Mr and Mrs J Cook

CONSTRUCTION [ ]

FILE COPY [l

PROJECT
West Wood Farm, Westfield Road,
Manea, Cambridgeshire.

DRAWING TITLE

Proposed Site Plan
Location Plan

PLANNING ISSUE

SCALE DATE DRAWN
1:200 & 1:1250 @ A2 May 2019 LB

CHECKED

DRAWING NUMBER

CH19/LBA/510/FP-1-100

REVISION

&

A


AutoCAD SHX Text_160
0.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_161
-0.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_162
0.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_163
0.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_164
DILAPIDATED

AutoCAD SHX Text_165
FADED WHITE LINES

AutoCAD SHX Text_166
PALLETS

AutoCAD SHX Text_167
0.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_168
0.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_169
-0.03

AutoCAD SHX Text_170
-0.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_171
-0.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_172
-0.39

AutoCAD SHX Text_173
-0.16

AutoCAD SHX Text_174
-0.06

AutoCAD SHX Text_175
-0.03

AutoCAD SHX Text_176
0.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_177
-0.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_178
-0.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_179
-0.49

AutoCAD SHX Text_180
-0.34

AutoCAD SHX Text_181
0.36

AutoCAD SHX Text_182
0.29

AutoCAD SHX Text_183
0.37

AutoCAD SHX Text_184
HOUSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_185
CAR PORT

AutoCAD SHX Text_186
CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text_187
CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text_188
CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text_189
CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text_190
CONCRETE ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_191
CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text_192
CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text_193
CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text_194
CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text_195
1.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_196
KERB

AutoCAD SHX Text_197
1.48

AutoCAD SHX Text_198
3.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_199
EAVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_200
7.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_201
EAVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_202
FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text_203
FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text_204
FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text_205
BUSHES

AutoCAD SHX Text_206
1.57

AutoCAD SHX Text_207
2.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_208
RAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text_209
1.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_210
CL 0.31

AutoCAD SHX Text_211
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_212
CL 1.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_213
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_214
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_215
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_216
PWF

AutoCAD SHX Text_217
PWF

AutoCAD SHX Text_218
PWF

AutoCAD SHX Text_219
1.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_220
1.32

AutoCAD SHX Text_221
1.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_222
1.49

AutoCAD SHX Text_223
1.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_224
11.24

AutoCAD SHX Text_225
RIDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text_226
7.06

AutoCAD SHX Text_227
RIDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text_228
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_229
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_230
1.12

AutoCAD SHX Text_231
1.24

AutoCAD SHX Text_232
1.23

AutoCAD SHX Text_233
1.34

AutoCAD SHX Text_234
1.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_235
1.16

AutoCAD SHX Text_236
1.18

AutoCAD SHX Text_237
1.17

AutoCAD SHX Text_238
1.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_239
1.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_240
1.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_241
1.12

AutoCAD SHX Text_242
1.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_243
1.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_244
1.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_245
1.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_246
0.93

AutoCAD SHX Text_247
0.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_248
0.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_249
0.54

AutoCAD SHX Text_250
0.46

AutoCAD SHX Text_251
0.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_252
0.47

AutoCAD SHX Text_253
0.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_254
0.76

AutoCAD SHX Text_255
1.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_256
1.29

AutoCAD SHX Text_257
1.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_258
1.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_259
1.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_260
1.17

AutoCAD SHX Text_261
1.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_262
1.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_263
1.12

AutoCAD SHX Text_264
1.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_265
1.12

AutoCAD SHX Text_266
1.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_267
1.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_268
1.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_269
1.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_270
1.01

AutoCAD SHX Text_271
1.03

AutoCAD SHX Text_272
1.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_273
1.01

AutoCAD SHX Text_274
1.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_275
0.94

AutoCAD SHX Text_276
0.96

AutoCAD SHX Text_277
0.92

AutoCAD SHX Text_278
0.94

AutoCAD SHX Text_279
1.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_280
0.93

AutoCAD SHX Text_281
0.93

AutoCAD SHX Text_282
0.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_283
0.83

AutoCAD SHX Text_284
0.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_285
0.57

AutoCAD SHX Text_286
0.47

AutoCAD SHX Text_287
0.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_288
0.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_289
0.34

AutoCAD SHX Text_290
0.33

AutoCAD SHX Text_291
0.32

AutoCAD SHX Text_292
0.33

AutoCAD SHX Text_293
0.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_294
0.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_295
0.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_296
0.33

AutoCAD SHX Text_297
0.32

AutoCAD SHX Text_298
0.28

AutoCAD SHX Text_299
0.27

AutoCAD SHX Text_300
0.28

AutoCAD SHX Text_301
0.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_302
0.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_303
0.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_304
0.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_305
0.23

AutoCAD SHX Text_306
0.24

AutoCAD SHX Text_307
0.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_308
0.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_309
-0.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_310
-0.17

AutoCAD SHX Text_311
-0.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_312
0.03

AutoCAD SHX Text_313
-0.18

AutoCAD SHX Text_314
-0.16

AutoCAD SHX Text_315
-0.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_316
0.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_317
0.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_318
-0.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_319
-0.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_320
-0.18

AutoCAD SHX Text_321
-0.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_322
-0.29

AutoCAD SHX Text_323
-0.26

AutoCAD SHX Text_324
-0.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_325
-0.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_326
-0.27

AutoCAD SHX Text_327
0.29

AutoCAD SHX Text_328
0.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_329
0.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_330
0.24

AutoCAD SHX Text_331
0.24

AutoCAD SHX Text_332
0.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_333
0.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_334
0.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_335
0.29

AutoCAD SHX Text_336
0.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_337
0.28

AutoCAD SHX Text_338
0.28

AutoCAD SHX Text_339
0.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_340
0.31

AutoCAD SHX Text_341
0.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_342
0.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_343
0.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_344
0.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_345
0.92

AutoCAD SHX Text_346
0.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_347
0.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_348
1.01

AutoCAD SHX Text_349
0.36

AutoCAD SHX Text_350
0.06

AutoCAD SHX Text_351
-0.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_352
-0.16

AutoCAD SHX Text_353
1.64

AutoCAD SHX Text_354
1.64

AutoCAD SHX Text_355
1.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_356
1.48

AutoCAD SHX Text_357
0.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_358
0.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_359
0.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_360
0.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_361
STAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_362
1.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_363
0.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_364
0.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_365
0.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_366
0.54

AutoCAD SHX Text_367
0.44

AutoCAD SHX Text_368
TP

AutoCAD SHX Text_369
0.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_370
WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text_371
DEMOLISHED BUILDINGH

AutoCAD SHX Text_372
CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text_373
PWF

AutoCAD SHX Text_374
1.26

AutoCAD SHX Text_375
1.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_376
0.98

AutoCAD SHX Text_377
0.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_378
0.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_379
0.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_380
0.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_381
0.66

AutoCAD SHX Text_382
0.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_383
0.29

AutoCAD SHX Text_384
0.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_385
0.01

AutoCAD SHX Text_386
0.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_387
0.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_388
0.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_389
0.18

AutoCAD SHX Text_390
0.33

AutoCAD SHX Text_391
0.49

AutoCAD SHX Text_392
0.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_393
0.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_394
0.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_395
0.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_396
0.91

AutoCAD SHX Text_397
0.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_398
0.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_399
CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text_400
CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text_401
CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text_402
CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text_403
CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text_404
CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text_405
CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text_406
1.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_407
1.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_408
1.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_409
1.12

AutoCAD SHX Text_410
1.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_411
1.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_412
KERB

AutoCAD SHX Text_413
TOP FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text_414
DEMOLISHED BUILDINGH

AutoCAD SHX Text_415
RUBBLE


NO WORKS TO COMMENCE ON SITE UNTIL ALL APPROVALS ARE CONFIRMED IN WRITING.

CLIENT'S RESPOSIBILITY TO FULLY COMPLY WITH THE CDM 2015 REGULATIONS INCLUDING
L BEVENS ASSOCIATES LTD ACCEPTS NO LIABILITY IF THIS IS BREACHED.

APPOINTING A PRINCIPAL DESIGNER AND PRINCIPAL CONTRACTOR FOR PROJECTS WITH

EXCEPT BY WRITTEN PERMISSION. NO LIABILITY WILL BE ACCEPTED FOR AMENDMENTS
MORE THAN ONE CONTRACTOR ON SITE.

MADE BY OTHER PERSONS. COPYRIGHT 2019 ©.
ALL WORKS TO COMPLY WITH CURRENT CDM REGULATIONS AS APPROPRIATE. IT IS THE

IT IS THE CONTRACTORS RESPONSIBILITY TO ACCURATELY LOCATE EXISTING SERVICES

ALL MEASUREMENTS SHOULD BE CHECKED ON SITE AND ANY DISCREPANCIES SHOULD
PRIOR TO WORKS COMMENCING.

L BEVENS ASSOCIATES ARCHITECTS LTD AND MAY NOT BE REPRODUCED OR AMENDED
REPORTED TO THE ORIGINATOR.

THIS DRAWING AND THE BUILDING WORKS DEPICTED ARE THE COPYRIGHT OF

DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS DRAWING

10m

Sm

100

1

Scale
Om

E 2 8
Q I~ =
s 3 g 2
B« <} w
B 3 5 T w
e g S > o o
= © z g
- S B = 8
r——— — — — — |\ —— —— = —— —— — — 0 o5 %]
t e e — T 5} 2 B g 4
il — — o 82 8 &
[ | 5 @ g
, , g 3 3
” W < 22 z
& F Bo®S » X m
,i i, 8 o= 2 %&%W c 0 ao 3
| 7 28w £ QO3 O < 5
, | 238 2.%25% U a S
(- H [ 2582838582 ; 5 &
[ [l 888552522 kel S 3 py
c i O - N 5208555878 g 28 o
© Ko} -~
. T I JEesdelsSss o o o ]
O [ , > o D2 =) ~
+ ] = g, x| = g L zl a
- (© | | e x| . =5 W R
) | | s = o 2 OO ow 2= L
L : N0 = Q = 5l =
| > oz T T wn o < (=)
a T | i} xr 4 [ c c
| t (4 N o o - D © © - ~~
()] , , N - 5 o)
| | AWLLIDG £ET LD o
— | i = 0 »n (S s 4 o EN
e [ | >ce = =) 33 o
Ll , , -2 = [S 2o = =M
— | | Loe T & w T — S 3
L " L 0< SO g ©-w = <12 =
Q [ T st © 2 % -l g5 = e @
. - 2o _&lszgle 28 y 0|2 S
—l =3 — o = O = as < o ol
, , =2 e lzgc|= % 8 I
| | 20 o9 4 = =
, | = i 2= |22 |2 &£4& 8 |8 O
o A - . Z 25 9= (k228 &2 @ 8-
N ) - on
H !
O [ ; (TR
u = o
d e Ly . (@) T o w = w T w a - J ww o a
| | E w o z o E o z N_ < E - )
Q (7)) o = 9 i o =< = s < 4 ¢
E i i [~ ) [~ £ ] m =
O w E uw * w .o 2 W < = O o
(0p) o o o I w 4w S a o oo Q 2
2 c s o u = ] o9 35 < Q
P4 o w s o) g 2w > w = U< x
g % £ o = 5z9°0 552 § ©, 8 3 ¢
o ) - > %] F%R MTA 4 R% o] w
o I} T 2 @ > = e o} S E > 935 E
&E < ol MP 35 = o) > w
Q & = 20 w 9 x 2 > o 29 2 i i
S 8] o 3 2 2 .- 2= o g g o gE ® < Z E <
< 2 > c 9&E g < s ooy 3 gu3 s 2
o (' z 448 2 g9f25% z g we® B 2Zo03 T &
: 8¢ 5 £22%f :spe % £ 2°8 2 g
= T w o o
o 5 8L, 2 EIBE 8§82 23y g Bgs £ &
o n B S Eoi s = % = z S O w o
Q5 @ O b Lz o W > £ > Z = 2 m
a (S wW oy F-390az £ g9 E b3 =5 2 I
w = T E m w n z 5 x o< E u < %) o
u s Z £Ea cx - @ % o w = = i a ]
o T ow < .0 o c =0 < z [©] a) =
& 0 wz QI g8 ¢z < b5 o < r Z < S
§ 290 S0 ,89Pxc$5%L ,206 = zEF § ¢
(0] E o E O = z w Z w oo %) <52 <
w z z UK&DEME%VY g oY = o3 > 2 o
o 5 ox 2z = 5o Q9 Z S5 2 £ w e o m TS
s < o 9 < Wy Q o3 % 7 =W
© = z=29° = Tz < m S o < 4z z 5 B :
2w 3 F wg s s I S 5 . = Exr g
e o < LoX = O o w Q o 3 S EQ I g B a g
wzlopdooFgbo8305 29032 ESWGW T zok
[a] c E & L b4 z z o =z
<=z ozE52<Q2z2>xE02 Lz Z w = x
> = © -l 4 O w x <
9&E32308 25523350 g9y msmmm Puzzx
E2ZXLouliuzZdoEdgqe E£22z2 wx2:2 ,204
So09s3Woo0% 32 AaswJlacghe g EG68EE umkE g
SEEwSQFz0d82az2 828 S=z08z HNodz
S cwQkl jSEo0f8 S Wy Ruwgy oo o< z2z 5
e C glz2 35zt 222> o550 % 3282223583 8w
IHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHH] HHHHHHHHHHHHHHHH] — =| 8 u g ] [ I T O  f < T Wz oW gz w2
L o IHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHT 0|2 5023 0°%9E20 30w, Yk, S@ELR3EL,Z23%ws
HHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHH * o— HHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHH Z 2L Zz o 385 SEzokE@dZE Quwuweg 2 np 0T tE Z
HHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHEH Igigipipinioigisigizisioioolsinl . —_— ol ®cE £5ZQ0paa055<05Z2aa3>5a 72wt uyos
L gigigigipipipigipinigipiginigh L ®Qa D=, 0mn0nEE®D =SS0 S0 £ JXx u
HHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHH HHHHHHHHHHHHHHEHHH ) T35 %X z9ZS>Uwdegwegz2Zzo>0zo0wogz=22go0<zx=ULo
A (g0} HHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHIIE © mACEAWEDDPAPDPESNEMMCETGEAMHMOT
Il ipininl el sisisininlnlnl sl gkl Q Igiaiaiolinioinioinlinlsalsialsiahi|s Q S :
HHHHHHHHHHHHEHHH] Spipipiplpiplpipipipipipinisinl e [S] o © < I} < N © - - -
HHHHHHHHHHHHHHH] — HH AR
HHHAHHH A HHHHHHH P Ll OH O A e T
HHHHHHHHHHHHHHHH] HHHHHHHHHHHHHHHH Ll
T H o (HHAAA A A A A A A AR
(i isisisi i isisisiniisisly HHHHHHHH A H A I HH A I (g}
T o o .
— rqajafafuadafufafatadatulutatalaii ?Z
HHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHA HHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHH |
T A A A AT o
HHHHHHEHHHHHHHEHKEHHKH H gigigigigigigipigigigipipEgEguyl u]
e b dadaladadatel o) o) o
e Q itgtyiytptyRytphtoty bl plybaty o ) S 2532 zep s £3 5% 2382 §F &5¢
I3iEiis iR IR IR IR IRIS I sl (¥p) (HHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHI (7)) e s L 5 £ ® ot 5 2 ® g 2 3 5 = 3 2
IHHHHHAHAAHHRHHAAHAHT =] S 2 ? £ ] 3] ° o o 2 e = S 5
HHHHHHHHHHHHHHHH] HHHHHHHHHHHEHHEHHEH [T T o 2 g e 2 o] L6 = o £ 8
HHHHHHHHHHHHHHHT HHHHEHHHEHHEHHEHEHHHIE 5 @2 8 £ o £ o 9 > = 9 ¢ © 5 © g 2
b pipipigigiinigininininiiniginll © cC v o ® T O = .= 2 (S S 2 0 D =
inipinipigigininipinipiniginininll ipigipipiniginiginigipigipgipipiph o g 3 S £ 2 s = L 2 s © ? o o Q5
ligigigligligigligigigligiglinligBnlgli igigigigiigigigigigigigigigigigl [mn) £ O > = g c £ = 5 < = 5 0 = c @
Igipigigipipiyigiptpipipiplpipigl o [HHAARAAHA A A A AR o = 6 5 o 2 B 5 8 8 c 8 2 5 g < 2 £ 5 o 3 S a
T HHHH HHHHHHHH s ieininl il sisin sl lRh IS 5 £ .0 88 £ E§ 2 € 25 5 3 5 T E & o R
"t HHHHHHEHHHHHEHFHHEHHHEH e Y o o =
O HH @) HHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHH (@) £ 2L£2E8%5 88, S 223 o8 g2 g= 93F
IHHHHHHHHHAHHHHHH] HHHHHHHHHHHHHHHH] O = G5 E o ® 3 2 3 S & o o] S 89 2 % a 3
\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\ iplinipigipliniglizigizizisinisisl o o O = () o o [ 2 £ O Q o c© = c
“““““““““ (MR A A A A A A AR S x o g . 8 g3 o S T 5 - =i 0w g © @ g 2 s
\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\ I Y X c o = > © = o ® = c [ = &
““““““““““““““““““ a a L O3 Segss §E: = %y sSE F2f sgr :°
\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\ 2 5 c o 2 - B 9 o S < @ c 5@ 2 0 - ®
c O T 9o o € ® 8 o ¢ 2 - 5 2 » o o
S - 5 2 5 c O £ o S @ ¢ s 3 S 2 2 8 ¢ g g
 ® 2 = ® £ = c 5 a S e 5 =)
S 2 £ 8 o B 8 o . 8 ° 9 S w o @ & 5 = o 5
- £ 2 ¢ @8 €5 @ 2 % E o o S o ¢ s o ww
323 8 2 o oo 5 2 8§ 2 5 25 5 S 3 I T
£ 2% = T = g e @ 8 8 5 g 8 e <
> ] S o & o 2 £ 2 o o < = 3} o 2 < &
o 2 c Qa c ® e a3 2 o S o 35 s [
o 2 = & £ * o 5 (%) P D o £ o <
€ 8 T o o 0 5 = 0 6 € O 5 B c 2 o &
: - = 5 %5 S g = 2 o £ & T % 9] c s c =5 =
£3689 [ o ©c o = o *r 2 < o B 3 o °© £
£ ©0 © & Q9 . S = £ 6 o 9 =4 = O @ £
ceasg €78 $8:58882; £59 5> §b@o
5 ¥ g 2 W 8 o 3 s 8 8 £ 8 gt ¢ msw. % & Tt
S @ o © 5 g 5 O 5 205 = § 2 & (S I ] =2 5 O
<) O = s °C o £ e g 2 5 2 - © & € O 5
S5 ©8 = meh wwm.‘wekdﬂ c c ? 3 € 3
2 o K 3 = g8 2 5 5 o E 2 5 o B < 5]
2ocgc e s £832 a5 3523 £79 E ¢ ¢ o © < £
=5 % %3 £ £ 3 T L @ 00T 5 - 5 5 5 ° o 9 2
50828 c¢ = 8 g 228 o3 & 65 g 8= o E 28
= < 5 5 O o £ 8 £ 8 3 £ S 9 5 o .8 E£E ] 8 O
oDkFE s 2% c ® G S0 o9 22 8- =% 2 £ 2 ° g
S 8 5 2 S E S <8 %2%F% s5.- 9 s T = o >3
2 e 3= 0 8 5 8 o 9 9 § 028 8%s5 e £ % E 8
2 )
f§e8gzsd TEBs £2PZEESgER6ERT —g w08
@ » s ET 2y 8°3F f£ 82T el FoEE 05 oL 2
2s Q 0235 T ¢ £ = o 92 S e o228 200 8 5L 3o L B
£ 5 2 o5 o & ET T o £ & 2 0 &5 5 2 8 F o 2 8 9 © = g =
= Ol 5 8 ¢35 35 = 2§ E g 2 3 89 < o g c§5§3Le 5580
85 Z858EFER g <ce2 g 53nESo222885¢ 2y
S 8 £ D 5 © © c o B > = g O = S 1<}
T @ —| 5 = H E 2 = o o 22060 cd L@ T ec Q3 ®ofg o g
O © ST s £ € 5 . 2 € § 5 EGC o228 EE£ 323 O % 8 <38 3
= 5 5 0 g 2P g 24d5 8 2 =2 §59° 5 8 - a3 08T ETEIZT 3L
5 £ 92355825 35fs BFL-2Lfz5ff8,08_-8%2:53
o = £ > ® = = E = = o g = o &
22 ! ! | 6 Sle2 5528 o535 -2 8560<XTES<38588,8%F53280
S= | | OlolF 25 & < F & & E ~ 2 a5 8236 EFTAESH BN B G
»n = [ [ 1= f
, , S
. ! ! S
I I a2
| | Q|
, ,
| | i | | |
[ [ f 859 [ osel
, ,
| | |
! [ , i
, ,
! [ , i
, ,
! [ , i
, ,
, [ , |
\\\\\\\\ ARRARRRRNARRAR ! o —
7 ! M
,
i |
,
i |
,
| L
| ,
f | H < ©
¥
| | - g g
, S =
7 ! u 5
| | 8
, | |
,
i |
| | |
i |
! | |
i |
| , | h
i |
| ,
i , ,
, ,
i , , |
, , >
, , 5 il
ﬂ | | = S 2 =S
| | £ 4 -
| | _, ,_B 9 =
| | o 2 ©
I I | il )
| | b 2 = kL
| | H il s —
| 11117 1 = (O]
c , , i
, , L
, , il C
o i N W i H @) 2
. \wr | | \ ® m— =
i R | | ) e
© TN | | ©
(H | | 1
> UHHH , ,
(HHH , | >
HHH , ,
,. | e el | | Q
\ % i — L | | —
\ HHHH , ,
N | L | | L e
% U f lalizish | ,
W IHHHHAHH] HI e HHH I e 5
T HHHHHT n TH T T 3
It | i © , e @
| I ff o— HHHH ! o—
, i H Y9 [ , Vg
I L4 Ll L ol A I
| il il MH HHHH | ® IS
W i ! O | No]
, HHHHHHHH il Q , Q 8
| THHHHHHH! Iy (7p] | S
| ilsllaklaksls mi | 0 &
I LT nl O I 5 5E
, HHHHHHH i | SE SE
| pigigigininlalialilj [H | 5% 5%
I HHHHHHHH i | = S =
| HHHHHHHH il O | O s o=
| T il — | fu 3 = =
HHH :
W R H g T T (a W (ol 5 s <
! ! | | | 3 Qe o
| | s E
| [ [ [ = = o
| | | | ﬁ S
, , | | ,
| | [ , —I
| | | =3 i o
B £ | %o |
| | | 2= - il \\A_Mm
I I S © 5= Y =
| , | Orv, Orv, * oo
@ O o O [=}
| [ e 3l e 3l =3
D | | S| ST =
» S » O
£ <
2= 2 c
=B =3 E i
S o S N <
ew, em, = S QO
I=J= S o i O < O
—w — << | o <
T 1
8629
7 ” 7 I | | |
W | | 2 869 I osek Tl
| |
| |
| | i
| |
| | i
[
HHHHHHAHE ,
HHHHAHHAHT |
I L |
S HFEH A e (AHAEAA SHHE AR A Iy — ) —
e [ sl | i . °] X
(HHHHHHHHAHHH ﬁ [
“““ THHHHHHT Hi i -
\\\\\\\\\\\\ pliplipigipiniigh ﬁ i L ]
(HHHHHHHHAHAHH [ @ £
““““““ T i — 5 ;
\\\\\\\\\\\\ HHHHHHH ﬁ Il o &8
\\\\\\ T HHHHH " o >
\\\\\\ HHHHHHEH H c A
““““““ it | i g
\\\\\\\\\\\\ HHHHHHH] I l @ U .
\\\\\\\\\\\\ ipEpEpEnEnEnEnN 7 =] [
\\\\\\\\\\\\ piplplplpigipli all
o8 | gt Ri]l i ! LT
g | R | i +
s \IHiHE (HHHHHHH|H [
\\\\\\ \‘\‘\‘\7 H
s JHHHHHH HHHHHHH
nrvm \\\\\\ HHHHEHHIE , q
z2s  |[HHHHHH THHH Ml HH i )
2 it et | ” T )
5s | S , I
53 e | /Al iy . \
»= J[HHHHHH (HHHHHHH = ! Ul —H o ] =
““““““ S iim 5 - g : S
\\\\\\\\\\\\ HHEHHEHI g | M .m m // Qnu .
\\\\\\ HHHHHHH = | | @© ~ > = A o
\\\\\\ HHHHHHH] L S H =g 2
\\\\\\\\\\\\ THHHHHHH | = 5 ® =
““““““ it | L 2 ~ R LLLLLLLL) 2 :
\\\\\\ iglgipigigipli | A W Lo L
\\\\\\\\\\\\ HHHHHHH] ﬁ | Hl - g :
\\\\\\ U HHHH | Hl S El
\\\\\\\\\\\\ Hplpipiniglinliy! ﬁ | H Q
\\\\\\\\\\\\ EpinSppiginlyl | Hl [0
\\\\\\ HHHHHHH 7 H =
\\\\\\ \\\\\\Lﬁ | i &
\\\\\\ LM HAHHARS H
\\\\\\\\\\\\ \\\\\\\\\\\\\\_H | iy -
\\\\\\ HHHHHHH | il
ihhnh R ER ] T
\\\\\\ \\\\\\Lﬁ
c T I C \
o | o . e ]
otl \\\\\\\\\\\\ S _H i = W % m
I O
s . =
© (T , ,
0v6¢
1 /
) a . \ .
— W — - 2 T —
L , L
|
= = pe N
o el | T g | M
= \ 3 :
= E © =
= = oc ) | g =
L I = g > Q ]
= ye s 3 c g £ 5O
g Wl q UL | = 5 o
1= | S (=)
= =
Q |E < Iyl | S
= %2 . o
(%) s C Iz |l =
O == == 7 L
\\\\\\\\\\\\\ |
““““““““““““““ I A c p H _ c
“““““““ o | =
T o) | | C 1 135
\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\ | 7 | - ¥ e ON.
T — , o : : B
| il il GM
(o ,
,
,
,
,
,
,
,
[

_—

f |
| |
| | e s
[ [72]
| | 58 53 5
7 7 Q5 Ssb Ng Ea
c o c 6! r O X
gi _ i O S ! - << o << | |
ub_almvi Bm m i 92yelL
mmz &2 SoN En
28 28 @ O & o
52 52 E<| 3=

Page 55



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	2 Previous Minutes
	5 Planning Appeals.
	6 F/YR19/0186/O<br/>Erection of up to 19 no dwellings (outline application with matters committed in respect of access) involving demolition of existing dwelling and outbuildings; 158 Stonald Road, Whittlesey.
	19-0186 REPORT
	19-0186 Location plan
	19-0186 Site plan (indicative)
	19-0186 Access layout
	Sheets and Views
	17033-07-01


	19-0186 Drainage plan
	Sheets and Views
	Drainage Strategy (2)



	7 F/YR19/0556/VOC<br/>Variation of condition 2 (imposition of a condition listing approved plans) of appeal decision APP/D0515/W/16/3148821 relating to planning application F/YR15/0614/F . Land North of Henry Warby Avenue, Elm
	Report Agenda Item 7 F-YR19-0556-VOC
	429684-FDC Location Plan-
	429460-Drawing-LOCATION PLAN AND PROPOSED SITE PLAN
	429459-Drawing-PLOTS 1-2 7-8  21-22 FLOOR PLANS AND ELEVATIONS
	429458-Drawing-PLOTS 3-6 27-30 9-20  23-26 FLOOR PLANS AND ELEVATIONS   

	8 F/YR19/0566/F<br/>Erect 1 dwelling (2 storey 4 bed) including an office and a detached double garage in association with existing business. Westfield Road, Manea.
	19-0566 report
	430921 location
	19-0566 location and site plan
	Sheets and Views
	Site Plan (2)


	19-0566 floorplans and elevations
	Sheets and Views
	Planning Drawing






